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PART !

Note on Forward-Looking Statements

When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected
ta,” “will continue,” “is anticipated.” “estimare,” “project”™ or similar expressions are intended to identify
“forward-laoking statements” within the meaning of the Privete Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, The
Company cautions readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking siarements, which speak
only as of the date made, and to advise readers thar various factors, including changes in regional and national
economic conditions, unfavorable judicial decisians, substantial changes in levels of marker interest rates. credit
and other risks of lending and investment activities and competitive and regulatory factors, could affect the
Company's financial performance and could cause the Company's actual results for futire periods to differ
meaterially from those anticipated or projected.

Lo

The Company does not andertake and specifically disclaims any obligation to update any forward-
looking statements 1o reflect occurrence of andicipated or unanticipated events or circumstances after the date of
such statements.

Item 1. Business
General

The Company. Central Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company™), a Massachusetts corporation. was organized by
Central Co-operative Bank (the “Bank™) on September 30, 1998, (o acquire all of the capital stock of the Bank as
part of its reorganization into the holding company form of ownership. which was completed on January 8. 1999,
Upon completion of the holding company reorganization, the Company's common stock, par vatue $1.00 per share
{the "Common Stock™), became registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act™), The
Company is a registered bank holding company subject to regulation and examination by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board™). The Company has no significant assets other than the
common stock of the Bank, loans o the Bank's Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan C'ESOP™) and various other Hauid
assets in which it invests in the ordinary course of business. For that reason, substantially all of the discussion
this Annual Report on Form 10-K relates (0 the operations of the Bank and its subsidiarics.

The Bank. Central Co-operative Bank (“Central” or the “Bank™) was organized as a Massachusetts
chartered co-operative bank in 1915 and converied from mutual to stock form in 1986, The primary business of the
Bank s 1o generate funds in the form of deposits and use the funds 1o make mortgage loans for the construction,
purchase and refinancing of residential properties, and to make foans on commercial real estate in its market area. In
addition, the Bank makes a limited amoumt of consumer loans including home improvement and secured and
unsecured personal loans, and commercial and indastrial foans, The Bank also mainizins an investment portiolio of
various types of debt securities, including corporate bonds and mortgage-bicked securities, and a limnied amount of
equity securities. In fiscal 2002, the Bank began 1o offer investment services {including annuities) to Its customers
through a third party broker-dealer and its msurance affiliate,

The Bank 15 headquartered 1in Somervilie, Massachusens and 15 operations are conducied through eight
full-service office facilivies located i Somerville, Arlington, Burlington, Chesinut Hill, Malden, Melrose and
Wobum, Massachuseus, a limited service high school branch in Worburn, Massachusetis, as well as over the
Internet. Each full-service branch office also has a 24-hour automated teller machine (CATM™). The Bank is a
member of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLEB™ of Boston and its deposits are insured to applicable limits by the
Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF ™) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC™).

All Massachusetis chartered co-operative banks are required 1o be members of the Share Insurance Fund.
The Share Insurance Fund maintains a deposit insurance fund which insures all deposits in member banks which are
not covered by federal insurance, which in the case of the Bank are its deposits in excess of S100,000 per insured
account. In past vears, a premium of 1724 of 1% of insured deposits has been assessed annually on member banks
such as the Bank for this deposit insurance. However. no premium has been assessed in recent vears,
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The Company’s and Bank’s main office is located at 389 Highland Avenue, Somerville, Massachusets
02144 and their telephone number is ({3 7Y 628-4000, The Bank also maintains a website at wyww . centradbk cont,

The operattons of the Buank and savings mstinstions are generally influenced by overall economic
conditions. the related menetary and fiscal policies of the federal government, and the regulatory policies of
financial institution  regulatory  authontics, including  the  Massachuseus  Commissioner of  Banks  (the
“Comnussioner”). the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC,

Market Area

All of the Bank’s offices are located in the northwestern suburbs of Boston, which are its principal market
area for deposits. The majority of the properties securing the Bank’s loans are located in Middlesex County. The
Bank’s market area consists of established suburban areas and includes portions of the Route 128 high-technology
corridor,

Competition

The Bank’s compettion for savings deposits has historically come from other co-operative banks. savings
banks, savings and loan associations and commercial banks locared in Massachusetts generaily, and in the Boston
metropelitan area, specifically. With the advent of interstate banking the Bank also faces competition from out-of-
state banking organizations. In the past, during tmes of high interesi rates, the Bank has also experienced additional
significant competition for investors’ funds from short-term money market funds and other corporate and
government securities. The Bank has faced continuing competition from other financial intermediaries for deposits.

The Bank competes for deposits principelly by offering depositors a wide variety of savingzs programs,
conventent branch locations, 24-hour automated teller machines, Internet banking, presuthorized payment and
withdrawal systems, tax-deferred retirement programs, and other miscellaneous services such as money orders,
travelers’ checks and safe deposit boxes. The Bank does not rely upon any individual, group or entity for a material
portion of 1y deposits. ‘

The Bank’s competition for real estate loans comes principally from mortgage banking companies, co-
operative banks and savings banks, savings and foan associations, commercial banks, insurance companies and other
mstitutional fenders. The Bank competes for loan onginetions primartly through the interest rates and loan fees it
charges and the efficiency and quality of services it provides borrowers. real estate brokers and builders. The
competition for loans encountered by the Bank, as well as the tvpes of institutions with which the Bank competes,
varies from time to time depending upon certain factors meluding the general availability of lendable funds and
credit, general and local economic conditions. current inferest rate levels, volatihity in the mortgage markets and
other factors which are not readily predictable.

Bank regulation is undergoing significant change with an increased nuember of bank mergers and
acquisitions, changes in the products and services banks can offer. and involvement in non-banking activities by
bank holding companies. Recent legislation and regulations have expanded the activities in which depository
institutions may engage and reduced or eliminated some of the competitive advantages which thrift institutions
formerly held over commercial banks, such as interest rate ditferentials which permited thrift institutions to offer a
higher rate of interest to anract deposits. The ability of the Bank to successfully compete will depend upon how
successfully it can respond 1o the rapidly evolving competitive, regulatory, technological and demographic
developments affecting 1ts operations.



Lending Activities

The Bank offers resideniial mortgage and home equity loans, commercial real estate loans. construction
loans, commercial and industrial loans, personal, home improvement, and various other types of consumer loans.
For the year ended March 31, 2003, the Bank originated loans totaling $186.0 million, including $3.9 million of
purchased loans. Of the total loans originated during fiscal 2003, S118.4 million, or 63.7%, were residential
mortgage loans and 348.5 million, or 26.1%, were commercial morigage loans. No loans were sold during fiscal
2002 and 2001 in the secondary market. During 2003, the Bank sold $35.7 million of current year residential
mortgage loan originations. The sale of loans in the sccondary market allows the Bank to continue to make loans
during periods when savings flows decline or funds are not otherwise available for lending purposes and to manage
interest rate risk. The Bank’s net loan portfolio increased by $18.8 million, or 5.1%, to $387.2 million at March 31,
2003 from $368.4 million at March 31, 2002, The increase occurred, despite the continuing high level of loan
refinancing activity due to an increase in originations of residential and commercial real estate loans and
construction loans.

Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table summanzes the composition of the Bank’s toan
portfolio by type of loan and the percentage each type represents of the total toan portfolio at the dates indicated.

At March 31,
2803 902 2001 2000 1999
Amount Yo Amount Yo Amount Y Amount % _ Amount %
{Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans:

Regidential .. $237.296 60.8% 5246045 662% $248459 719%  §243.570 76.1% S 212,659 7i.8%
Commercial i 107,140 274 B7.013 234 £9.849 202 422K 169 48,756 174
COnSTUCHON ..o 30,294 7.8 20,998 5.6 9152 26 9.765% 31 5268 198
Second mongage and home equity . 9.128 2.3 9.154 2.5 10,977 3.2 7.403 2.3 7462 273
Total mortgage loans......coen 383.858 98 3 363210 977 338,537 97.9 314.966 984 274,146 978
Other loans:
Commercial and industrial ... 5319 1.4 6,901 1.9 1.4 3.349 11 4.391
CONSUTET oo 1287 0.3 1396 04 0.7 1698 0.5 1,809
Total other loans ..o 6.606 1.7 8497 2.3 21 3.047 1.6 8,200
Total 1oans..o e 100.0% 37707 100.0% 100.0% 320013 100.0% 280346
Less:
Allowance for loan fosses ... o 32u4 2593
L0anS, BEl.ciee § 387,180 $.317,820
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Loan Purtfolio Sensitivity. The following table sets forth certain maturity information as of Mareh 31,
2003 regarding the dollar amount of commercial and indusimal loans as well as construction loans in the Bank's
porifolio. including scheduled repayments of principal, based on contractual terms to maturity. Demand loans, loans
having no schedule of repayments and no stated maturity and overdrafts are reported as due in one year or less.

Due After
Due Within One Through Due After
One Year Five Years Five Years Total

{In thousands)

Construction loans................. $ 2624 $ 1.832 S 302094
Commercial and industrial loans ... 670 l64 §319
TOU ittt by 3,294 3 1,996 43

Of construction loans and commercial and mdustrnial loans maturing more than one vear after March 31,
2003, $3.8 million have fixed rates and $1.3 million, have floating or variable rates.

Residential Lending, The Bank's residential morigage loans at March 31, 2003 totaled $237.3 milhon, or
60.8%, of the total Joan portfolio. Fixed-rate residential morigages tomaled $178.6 million, or 73.3%, of the
residential foan portfolio and adjustable rate loans totaled $38.7 miliion, or 24 7%, of the residential loan portfolio.

With the implementation of its montgage banking inttiative in fiscal 2003, whereby the Bank is seeking 10
increase its origination of residential mortgage leans and to generate additional noninterest income via loan sale
gains, management vegularly assesses the desirability of holding newly originated long-term, fixed rate residential
morigage loans in its portfolio. A number of factors are evaluated to determine whether or not to hold such foans
including, current and projected liquidity, current and projected interest rate risk profile, projected growth in other
interest-earning assets, e.g. commercial real estate loans, and projected interest rates. In light of these factors, the
Bank sold $335.7 million of 13 and 30 vear fixed rate residential mortgage loans in the secondary market while
retaining $68.0 million of fiscal 2003 originations of such loans in portfolio, With the rate on the 30 vear fixed rate
residential mortgage loan reaching a 45-year low in 2003, the Company experienced significant refinancing activily.
Customers who refinanced their mortgages generally refinanced their existing home loans with either a 13 or 30 vear
fixed rate mortgage loan. These market conditions lead o a continuing shift to the fixed rate component of the
Bank’s residential mortgage loan portfolio.

The Bank’s adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans have a maximum term of 30 years, and allow for
periodic interest rate adjustments. The Bank prices the inital rate competitively but generally avoids initial deep
discounts from contracted indices and margins. The Bank has adopted the U.S. Treasury Securities Index, adjusted
to a constant maturity of one to five vears, as 15 primary index. The margin at which adjusiable-rate loans are
generally set 15 2.875 percentage points over the stated index. Interest rate adjustments on adjustable morigage loans
are capped al two percentage points per adjustment and six percentage pownts over the life of the loan.

Residenual loans may be granted as construction loans or permanent loans on residential properties.
Construction loans on owner-occupied residential properties may convert to residential Joans at fixed or adjustable
rates upon compietion of conswuction. Loans secured by one- to four-family residential properties are typically
written in amounts up 10 80% of the appraised value of the residential property. The Bank generally requires private
mortgage insurance for loans in excess of 80% of appraised value. The maximum loan-to-value ratic on owner
occupied residential properties 18 95%. The maximum loan-to-value ratio on non-owner occupied residential
properties 1s §0%.

Commercial Real Estate and Construction Lending. The Bank originates permanent and construction
loans on commercial real estate. Commercial real estate joans are typically secured by income-producing properties
such as apartment buildings, office buildings, industrial buildings and various retail properties and are written with
either fixed or adjusiable interest rates. Comrmercial real estate loans with fixed interest rates have terms gencerally
ranging from one to five years.  As of March 31. 2003, commercial real estate loans totaled $107.1 million and
constituted 27.4% of the total loan portfolio,



Commercial real estate toans may be made for up ta 80% of the appraised value of the property up to 55.0
million, the Bank’s “house lending limit” for an individual borrower. Commercial real estate loans currently offered
by the Bank have terms of one to 20 vears. Title msurance. fire, casualty insurance zmd flood msurance are required
in amounts sufficient to protect the Bank's inerest, where applicable. In some cases, commercial real estate loans
were granted in participation with other lenders.

The Bank’s construction loans totaled $30.3 million, or 7.8%. of the Bank’s loan ponfolio at March 31,
2003. Construction loans are short-term in nature and have maturities ranging from six months to two years. The
Bank grants loans o construct residental and commercial real estate, as well a3 land development for individual
residential lots,  Currently, consmruction loans are made for up to 809 of the projecied value of the completed
property, based on independent appraisals. Funds are disbursed based on a schedule of completed work presented to
the Bank and confirmed by physical inspection of the property by a construction consultant and only after receipt of
title updates.

The Bank also onginates loans for the construction of single-family homes for resale by professional
butlders. The Bank also lends to individuals for construction of one- to four-family homes which they intend o
occupy.  Borrowers are required to have a firm contract with a qualified builder or developer or to have
demonstrated prior home building experience. Construction loans are normally made for a term of not more than
eighteen months and based on a completed value of not more than 80%. as determined by an independent certified
and licensed appraiser.

The continuing planned growth in commercial real estate loans and construction loans in fiscal 2003, which
aggregated $29.4 million, or 27.2%, s attributable w the addition of experienced commercial lenders and expansion
of the credit administration function in 2002, This growth was aided by opportunities created by the declining rate
environment which prevailed during the year,

Second W{;rzg(wes‘ and Home Equity Lines of Credit. The Bank offers home equity Hines of credit that are
secured by the borrower’s equity in their promary residence and may take the form of a first or second mortgage.
Equity foans are made in amounts up o 80% of the appraised value less any first mortgage. Payment of nierest 1s
required monthly and the rate 1s adjusted monthly based on changes in the Prume Rale, as quoted in the Wall Srreer
Jowrnal. Loans are not contingent upon proceeds being used for home improvement. The Bank's home equity
foans outstanding, and amortizing second mortgages totaled 891 million, or 2.3%. of the Bank’'s loan portfoho at
March 31, 2003,

Commercial and Industrial, Consumer and Other Leans. The Bank's commercial and industrial,
consumer and other loans totaled $6.6 mitlion. or 1.7%, of the woial Joan portfolio on March 31, 2003, The Bank’s
commercial and industrial portfolio consists primarily of time, demand and ling-of-credit loans o a v:mety of local
small businesses generally done on a secured basis. The Bank engages in consumer lending primarily as an
gecommodation 1o existing customers, :

Risks of Commercial Real Estate, Construction and Commercial and Industrial Lending, Commercial
real estate. construction and commercial and induswrial lending entai} significant addinonal risks compared
residential mortgage lending.  The repavment of loans secured by mcome-producing properties 15 typically
dependent on the successful operation of the properties and thus may be subject 1o a greater extent to adverse
conditions in the local real estate market or in the economy generally. Construction {oans involve additional nisks,
because of the uncertaintics inherent in estimating construction costs. delavs arising from {abor problems, material
shortages. and other unpredictable contingencies, which make it relatively difficult o evatuate accurately the total
loan funds required to c<>mp§em a project, and related loan-ro-value ratios. Commercial and indusirial loans are
generally not secured by real estate and may invelve greater risks than other tvpes of lending. Because payments on
such loans are ofien dependent on the successful operation of the business involved. repayment of such loans may be
subject 10 1 greater extent to adverse conditions in the economy. For more information see ™ -- Non-Performing
Assets.”

Origination Fees and Other Fees. The Bank currently collects origination fees on some of the real estate
loan products offered. Fees w cover the cost of appraisals, credit reports. and other direct costs are also collected.

H



Loan origination fees coflected vary in proporiion to the level of lending activity as well as competitive and
gconomic conditions,

The Bank unposes late charges on all loans with the exception of equity lines of credit and loans secured by
deposits.  The Bank also collects prepayment prenmuums and partial release fees on commercial real estate and
construction loans where such items are negetiated as part of the loan agreement.

Loan Solicitation and Processing. Loan oniginations come {rom @ number of sources. Residenual real
estate louns are atiributable to walk-in customers, existing customers. real estate brokers, third party originators and
butlders. The Bank also utilizes both in-house and traveling originators in the origination of residential real estate
foans. Commercial real estate loans are onginated by the Bank’s team of five commercial loan officers. Consumer
loans result from walk-in customers and depositors.

Each loan originated by the Bank is underwniten by lending personnel of the Bank or gualified
independent contract underwriters. Individual lending officers. a committee of loan officers and the Bank’s Security
Committee have the authority to approve loans up 1o various Bmits. Applications are received in each of the offices
of the Bank. Independent certified and licensed appraisers are used to appraise the property miended io secure real
esiate loans. The Bank’s underwrniting criteria are designed to mintimize the risks of each loan. There are detailed
guidelines concerning the types of loans that may be made, the nature of the collateral, the information that must be
obtained concerning the loan applicant and follow-up inspections of collateral afier the loan is made.

Non-Performing Assets. The Bank notifies a borrower of a delinquency when any payment becomes 13
davs past due. Repeated contacts are made if the loan remains delinquent for 30 days or more. The Bank will
consider working out a payment schedule with a borrower to clear a delinquency, if necessary. If, however, a
borrower is unwilling or unable 1o resolve such a default after 60 days, the Bank will generally proceed to foreclose
and higuidate the property io satisfy the debt.

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as non-accrual loans. Accrual
of interest on loans and amortization of net deferred loan fees or costs are discontinued either when reasonable doubt
exists as to the full and tmely collection of interest or principal, or when 2 loan becomes contractually past due 90
days with respect to imerest or principal. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously
accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest income.  Interest accruals are resumed on such
loans only when they are brought fully current with respect 1o interest and principal and when, in the judgment of
management. the loans are estimated 10 be fully collectable as to both priacipal and interest.

The Bank has instituied additional procedures to closely monior loans and bring potential problems to
management’s attention early in the collection process. The Bank prepares a monthly watch list of polential
problem loans including currently performing loans.  The Senior Loan Officer reviews delinguencies with the
Security Committee of the Board of Directors at least monthly. Due 1o the high priority given to monitoring asset
quality, Senior Management is involved in the early detection and resolution of problem loans.
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The following wble sets forth information with respeet to the Bank’s non-performing asseis at the dates
indicated. '
At March 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Loans sccounted for on a non-acerual basts,

ROT-PErfOrMIng T0NS e e 3 - $ - b - $ 235 S 419
ReStructured 10805 ...ooirier e cen s e - - - - -
Real estate acquired by foreclosure .. -~ - - - --

Non-performing 885818 oo s - S e 3 = LA s 319
Impaired loans, aceruing ..o et s § - S - S - s - s -
Non-performing loans o total foans ne 0.00% 0.00% (.00% 0.07% 0.15%
Non-performing assets 1o total &ssels .o (0.00% 0.00% D.00% 0.06% 0.12%

At March 31, 2003, there were no loans where known information about possible credit problems of
borrowers caused management 10 have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to comply with present
loan repayment terms.,

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level which management
considers adequate to provide for probable losses based on an evaluation of known and inherent risks in the
portfolio. Such evaluation for each of the periods reported includes identification of adverse situations which may
affect the ability of certain borrowers 10 repay, a review of overall portfolio size, quality, composition and an
assessment of existing and anticipated economic conditions. Regular reviews of the Joan portfolio are performed 10
identify toans for which specific allowance allocations are considered prudent. Specific allocanions are made based
on the nisk classification assigned to individual loans, Additonally, general risk allocations are determined by
formula whereby the loan portfolio is stratified by loan type and by risk rating category. Loss factors are then
applied to each strata based on various considerations including historical loss experience, delinquency wends,
current economic conditions, industry standards and regulstory guidelines. While management uses available
information in establishing the allowance for loan losses, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if
economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations. Additions to the
allowance are charged to earnings and realized losses, net of recoveries, are charged to the allowance.

Various regulatory agencies. as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’'s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may reguire the Baok to recogaize additions to the allowance
based on their judgment of information available to them at their examination date.




The following table presents activity in the allowance for loan losses during the vears indicated.

Years Ended March 31,

2003 20462 2001 2000 1999
{Dollars in thousands)

Batance at beginning of vear ... $3.292 s 31086 $ 2993 S 2913 § 28R6
Charge-offs:

Residential ororgage. ..o e -~ -- -- -- {88}

Commercial morigage - - - - -

Other 1005 oot e e 2h (4} {4} {9} {11y

Total charge-offs....... 20 (4} 4 {9} {9%)

Recoveries:

Reswdential mongage ..o - 80 60 9 74

Commercial mortgage - 103 48 36 36

O1her 10anS ..o v 3 7 9 44 12

Total recovenes....o 13 190 117 89 12

Net (charge-offs) recoveries..... v, (83 186 113 80 27
ProVISION oot e - = - - -
Balance at end of vear.....oeioe o $..3281 0§ 3793 S 3106 32993 32913
Average loans outstanding during the year.... £378502 85335271 $341,732 $300,089 $287.513
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans...... nm n/a na n/a n/a
Total loans outstanding at end of vear ... $390.464 $371.707 §345.793 $320.013 $ 280.346
Ratio of allowance for loan

losses to loans atend of vear..... 0.33% 0.89%, 0.90% 0.94% 1.04%

The allowance for Joan losses is available for offsenting credir losses in connection with any loan, but is
inernally allocated among loan categories as part of the process for evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses. The following table presents the allocation of the Bank's allowance for loan losses, by type of loan. at

the dates indicated.

At March 31,

2003

2002

% of
Louns to

Amount  Total Loans
Muorigage loans;
Residennial montgage........... £33 60.8%
Conunercial mortgage .. 2,009 274
Construction ... ceernnie 457 7.8
Secand mortgage and
home 2QUILY .o 94 2.3
Total mongage fvans.. 3,143 8.3
Other 10ans oo 141 1.7
Totah oo 5..2.284

% of
Loans to

2001

% of
. L.oans to
Amount

Ampunt  Total Loans Tetal Loans
{Doliars in thousands)
§ 836 65.2% S 1637 71.9%
1.938 234 1,038 20.2
462 3.6 169 26
2.5 163
977 3.027
23 79
199.0% 3100




At March 31,

2000 1999
Yo of % of
Loans to Loans to
Amount  Total Loans Amount  Total Loans

(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans:

Residential morigage............. § 1333 76.1% § 1420 75.8%
Commercial mortgage ... 1,202 168 1.356 {74
Construction ... evrercein o 108 31 92 1.9
Second mortgage and

home equity oo 178 23

Total mortgage loans.......... 2911 R4 \

Other 10808 e 82 1.6 87
Total o $ 2993 100 0% § 2913

Investment Activities

The primary objectives of the investment portfolio are to achieve a competitive rate of return over a
reasonable period of tume and to provide hguidity. As a Massachusetts-chartered bank, the Bank is authonzed to
invest in various obligations of federal and state governmental agencies, corporate bonds and other obligations and,
within certain limits, marketable equity securities,  The Bank’s investment policy requires that corporate debt
securities be rated as “investrnent grade” at the time of purchase. The Bauk's investment in marketable equity
sccurities is generally limited 1o large, well known corporations whose shares are actively traded. The size of the
Bank’s holdings mn an individual company’s stock is also limited by policy. A portion of the Bank’s investient
portfolio consists of mortgage-backed securitics which represent interests in pools of residential mortgages. Such
securities include securities issued and guaranteed by the Federal National Morngage Association (FNMAT),
Federal Home Loan Morngage Corporanon (“FHLIMC™), and the Govemment National Mortgage Association
{"GNMA") as well as collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs™} 1ssued primartly by FNMA and FHLMC.

Invesiments are classified as either held w maturity, available for sale or trading. Tnvestments classified as
trading securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in eamnings.  Investments
classified as available for sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gaing and losses reported as a separate
component of stockholders” eguitv. Securities held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. At March 31, 2003, all
of the Bank’s marketable investments were classified as available for sale,

The following table sets forth a summary of the Bank’s investment securities, as well as the percentage
such investments comprise of the Bank's total assets, at the dates indicated.

At March 3L,
2003 2002 2001
{Dollarg in thousands)

U. S. Government and agency oblgations oo e S §.247 S 13998 $ 19051
Corporate BONGS .o et e - 38727 38.568
Mortgage-backed SECUTIHES oo 12.056 18.340
Marketable equity securities 2081 2.5980

R 14

Total InVesmont SECUTTHES ... oo et sneaeensanennes 3 3

Percentage of 10181 85515 i oo v 12.8% 15.8% 11L0%
.




At March 31. 2003, the Bank owned securities issued by several companies having a book value that exceeded 10%
of the Company’s stockholders’ equity. Such securities consisted pnmanly of debt obligations. The following wble
summanzes the aggregate beook and market value of the Bank’s holdings of each issuer.
Issuer Book Value Market Value
{Doilars in thousands)

AT&T § 52163 $ 541735
Ford Motor Credit 5,082.9 4.930.0
GMAC 5.143.8 32679
Boeing Capiial Cormp. 5,034.7 32356
Hewlett Packard 49822 5.445.8
DaimlerChrysler 40158 42652

The following wable sets forth the scheduled maturities. amortized cost, market values and average vields
for the Bank's debt securities at March 31, 2003,

Dne Year or Less One to Five Years Five to Ten Years Munre thun Ten Years Total Investment Portfoliv
Amortized Average Amartized Average Amortized Average Amortived  Average  Amortized Market Average
Cost Yield Cust Yield Cunt Yield Cust Yield a5t Value Yield

{Dollars in thousands)

U.S. government and agency
6.23%

<
[

e}
i

(75

6.000

SECUTTHES oo 3 - - U &, 1% £,000
Corporate bonds. 301 7,37 689 - 36912 7.0]
Mongage-hacked securtties ... - - 8.89 6.30 11,840 6.55
Total S 6752 8




Deposits and Borrowed Funds

General. Savings accounts and other types of deposits have traditionally been an important source of the
Bank’s funds for use in lending and for other general business purposes. In addition to deposits, the Bank derives
funds from lean repayments, loan sales, borrowings and from other operations. The availability of funds is
influenced by the general level of interest rates and other market conditions. Scheduled loan repavments are a
relatively stable source of funds while deposit inflows and outflows vary widely and are influenced by prevailing
interest rates and -money market conditions, Bommowings may be used on a short-term basis to compensaie for
reductions in deposits or deposit inflows at less than projected levels and may be used on a longer term basis to
support expanded lending acuvines,

Deposits. Consumer deposits are antracted principally from within the Bank’s marker area through the
offering of a broad selection of deposit instruments including demand deposit accounts, NOW and Preferred NOW
accounts, money market deposit accounts, regular savings accounts. term deposil accounts and retirement savings
plans. The Bank has historically not actively solicited or advertised {or deposits outside of s market area or
solicited brokered deposits, During fiscal 2003, the Bank did enter into a retail CD brokerage agreement with a
major brokerage firm and considers this arrangement to be 2 secondary source of liquidity. The Bank auracts
deposits through its branch office network. automated teller machines, the Internet and by paving rates competitive
with other Massachusetts financial institutions.

Deposit Accounts. The following table shows the distribution of the Bank’s deposit accounts at the dates
indicated and the weighted average rate paid for each category of account for the vears indicated.

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001
Avegrage Average Average
Average Yo of Rate Average Yo of Rate Average Yo of Rate
Balance  Deposits Paid Balance  Deposits Paid Balance  Deposits Paid

{Dollars in thousands)

Demand deposit accountso...ee.. 5 29586 1.7% -~ % 8§ 24.533 - % § 20382 7.5% - Y%
NOW BCCOUNMS .o ncen e 37.271 13.4 64 36,177 iz 32312 120 1.29
Passbook and other savings
ACCOUNS ooeeivr e 234 1o 67,322 £.32 62,018 229 2.03
Money market deposit accouass 121 183 16,869 1.7 17.200 64 2.22
Term deposit cenificates 384 372 ] 513 138223 512 381
Total deposits . oo 2.02% 1000% 2.9%% 3.73%




e

Time Deposits in Excess of $100.006. The following table indicates the amount of the Bank’s time
deposits of $100.000 or more by time remaining until maturity as of March 31, 2003 (in thousands).’

Maturity Period:

Three mOnthS OF JeSS... ittt e $ 4055
Three through sIXmoenths i e 7.584
Six through twelve MODTIS o ena i e 8.696
Over twelve MONIS.. ... e 3.924

TOLAT i e s RTIRN $.26259

Borrowings. From time to time the Bank borrows funds from the FHLB of Boston. Al advances from the
FHLB of Boston are secured by a blanket hen on residential first morigage loans, cenain investment securities and
all the Bank’s stock in the FHLB of Boston. At March 31, 2003, the Bank had advances outstanding from the
FHLB of Boston of 5144.4 milbon. Proceeds from these advances were primarily used to fund ihe Bank’s loan
growth,  Additonal sources of bomrowed funds include The Co-operative Central Bank Reserve Fund and the
Federal Reserve System,

The following table sews forth cermin information regarding borrowings from the FHLB of Boston,
tncluding short-term borrowings under a hine of credit, at the dates and for the periods indicated.

At oor for the
Years Ended March 31,
1003 2002 2001
{Dollars in thousands)

Amounts outstanding at end of period $ 144,300 5 164,000 $121.000
Weighted average rate at end of Periot. .o ecenneerin e 4.81% 4.35% 5.84%
Maximum amount of borrowings outstanding

atany month end . e e S 163,300 S 164,000 $ 121,000
Approximate average amounts outStanding. .o S 155,390 S 124,680 SHI1980
Approximate weighted average rate during the year oo 4.67% 5.41% §.18%
Subsidiaries

In April 1998, the Bank eswablished Central Securities Corporation, a Massachusetts corporation, as a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank for the purpose of engaging exclusively in buying, selling and holding, on its
own behalf, securities that may be held directly by the Bank. This subsidiary corporation holds U.S. Treasury notes,
Government agency obligations, corporate bonds and mortgage-backed securities and qualifies under Section 38B of
Chapter 63 of the Massachusetts General Laws as 2 Massachusetts security corporation.

In July 1999, the Bank established Central Preferred Capital Corporation (“CPCC™), a Massachusens
corperation which has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“"REIT”) for federal and Massachusetts
tax purposes. CPCC holds mortgage loans which were previously originated by the Bank. For additional
information, see Note 8 of Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Siatements under “htem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”




REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
Regulation and Supervision of the Company

General. The Company is a bank holding company subject 1o regulation by the Federal Reserve Board
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1936, as amended (the "BHCA™)Y As a result, the activities of the
Company are subject to certain limitations, which are described below, In addition. as a bank holding company, the
Company s reguired 0 file annual and quarterly repors with the Federal Reserve Board and to furmsh such
additional information as the Federsl Reserve Board may require pursuant 1o the BHCA. The Company is also
subject to regular examination by the Federal Reserve Board.

Activities, With certam exceptions, the BHCA prohibits a bank holding company from acquiring direct or
indirect ownership or control of more than 3% of the voting shares of a company that is not a bank or a bank holding
company, or from engaging directly or indirectly in activities other than those of banking, managing or controlling
banks, or providing services for lis subsidiaries. The principal exceptions to these prohibitions involve certain
non-bank activities which, by statute or by Federal Reserve Board regulation or order, have been identified as
activities closely related to the business of banking, The activities of the Company are subject o these legal and
regulatory limitations under the BICA and the related Federal Reserve Board regulations. Notwithstanding the
Federal Reserve Board's prior approval of specific nonbanking activities, the Federal Reserve Board has the power
to order a holding company or iis sybsidiaries to terminate any activity, or 10 erminate its ownership or control of
any subsidiary, when it has reasonable cause to believe that the continuation of such achivity or such ownership or
control constitutes a serious risk to the financal safety, soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary of that holding
company.

Effective with the enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Blilev Act (the "G-L-B Act”™) on November 12, 1999,
bank holding companics whose financial institution subsidiaries are well capitalized and well managed and have
satisfactory Community Reinvestiment Act ("CRA™} records can elect to become “financial holding companies”™
which are permitted to engage in a broader range of financial sctivities than are permitied to bank helding
companies. Financial holding companies are authorized t0 engage in, directly or indirectly, financial activities, A
financial activity is an activity that is: {1) financial in nature; () incidental to an activity that is financial in nature; or
(11) complementary to a financial acuvity and that does not pose a safety and soundness risk. The G-L-B Act
includes a list of activities that are deemed to be financial in nature. Other activities alse may be decided by the
Federal Reserve Board to be financial in nature or incidental thereio if they meet specitied criteria. A financial
holding company that intends to engage in & new activity or to acquire a company to engage in such an activity is
required 10 give prior notice o the Federal Reserve Board. 1f the activity 18 not either specitied in the G-L-B Actas
being a financial activity or one that the Federal Reserve Board has determined by rule or regulation to be financial
n nature, the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Bouard is required,

Aequisitions, Under the BHCA, & bank holding company must obiain the prior approval of the Federal
Reserve Board before (1) acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank or bank
holding company if, after such acquisition. the bank holding company would directly or indirectly own or control
more than 3% of such shares: (2} acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or bank holding
company; or (3) merging or consolidating with another bank holding company. Satisfactory financial condition,
particularly with regard to capita! adequacy, and satisfactory CRA ratings generally are prerequisites 10 obtaining
federal regulatory approval to make acquisitions.

Under the BHCA, any company must obtain approval of the Federal Reserve Board prior to acquiring
control of the Company or the Bank. For purposes of the BHCA., “control™ is defined as ownership of more than
25% of any class of voting securities of the Company or the Bank, the ability to control the election of a majority of
the directors, or the exercise of a controlling influence over management or policies of the Company or the Bank. In
addidion. the Change in Bank Control Act and the relared regulations of the Federal Reserve Board require any
person or persons acling in concert {except for companies required to make application under the BHCA), 1o file 2
written notice with the Federal Reserve Board before such person or persons may acquire control of the Company of
the Bank. The Change in Bank Control Act defines “control” as the power, directly or indirectly. 0 vote 25% or
mare of any voting securities or to direct the management or policies of a bank holding company or an insured bank.




Under Massachusetts banking law, prior approval of the Massachusetts Division of Banks is also required
before any person may acquire control of a Massachusetts bank or bank holding company. Massachusetts law
generally prohibits a bank holding company trom acquiring control of an additional bank if the bank to be acquired
has been in existence for fess than three vears or if after such acquisition, the bank holding company would control
more than 30% of the FDIC-insured deposits in the Commonwealth of Massachusets.

Capital Reguirements. The Federal Reserve Board has adopted guidelines regarding the capital adeguacy
of bank holding companies, which require bank holding companies 10 mainigin specified minimum ratios of capral
to total assets and capital to risk-weighted assets. See “Regulation and Supervision of the Bank -- Capiuwl
Reguirements.”

Dividends. The Federal Reserve Board has the power o prohibit dividends by bank holding companies if
their actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement on the
payment of cash dividends by bank holding companies, which expresses the Federai Reserve Board’s view that a
bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the company’s nef income for the past vear
is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the company’s
capital needs, asset quality, and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board also indicated that w would
be inappropriate for a bank holding company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds o pay
dividends. Under the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board pursuant o the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA™), the Federal Reserve Board may
prohibit a bank holding company from paving any dividends if the bolding company’s bank subsidiary s classified
as “undercapitalized.” See “Regulation and Supervision of the Bank -- Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action.”

Stock Repurchases. As a bank holding company, the Company is required to give the Federal Reserve
Board prior writien notice of any purchase or redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross
consideration for the purchase or redemption, when combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases
or redemptions during the preceding 12 months. is equal 10 10% or more of the Company’s consolidated net worth.
The Federal Reserve Bourd may disapprove such a purchase or redemption if it determines that the proposal would
violate any low, regulation, Federal Reserve Beard order, directive. or any condition imposed by, or written
agreement with, the Federal Reserve Board, This requirement does not apply to bank holding companies that are
“well-capitalized.” received one of the two highest examination ratings at their last examination and are not the
subject of any unrescived supervisory issues.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, On July 30, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0of 2002 ("SOX") was signed mto
law which mandated a variety of reforms intended 10 address corporate and accounting fraud. SOX coniained
provisions which amend the Securives Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act™) and provisions which
directed the SEC 1o promulgate rules. The resultant law and regulations under the Act as of the time of this annual
report 18 set forth in the following paragraphs.  SOX provides for the establishment of a new Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB™) which will enforce auditing. quality control and independence standards
for firms that audit Securities and Exchange Commisston ("SEC )-reporting companies and will be funded by fees
from all SEC-reporting companies. SOX imposed higher standards for auditor independence and restricts provision
of consulting services by auditing firms to companies they audit. Any non-audit services being provided to an audit
client will require preapproval by the Company's audit commitice members. In addition, certain audit partners must
be rotated periodically, SOX requires chief executive officers and chief financial officers, or their equivalent, o
certify to the accuracy of periodic reponts filed with the SEC. subject to civil and criminal penalties if they
knowingly or willfully viclate this certification requirement. 1o addition, under SOX, counsel will be required to
report evidence of a material violation of the securities laws or a breach of fiduciary duty by a company to its chiel
executive officer or its chief legal officer, and, if such officer does not appropriately respond, t report such
evidence to the audit committee or other similar cormnmites of the board of directors or the board iiself,

.

Longer prison terms will alse be applied 1o corporate executives who violate federal securities laws, the
period during which certain types of suits can be brought against a company or its officers has been extended. and
bonuses issued 10 10p executives prior to restalement of 4 company's financial statements are now subject to
disgorgement if such restatement was due to corporate miusconduct. Executives are also prohibited from trading
dunng retirement plan "blackout” penods, and loans 1w company executives are restricted. In addntion, a provision
directs that civil penalties levied by the SEC as a result of any judicial or administrative action under the Act he
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investors. Directors and executive officers must also ;’i"ggg
AR SR b

deposited in a fund for the benefit of harmed oY 5 3
yrities within two business days of the change, and as of i
3 ge, of

changes in their ownership of a company's $€Ct i
June 2003, all ownership reports must be electronically filed.

SOX also increases the oversight and authority of audit committees of publicly traded co i
commitiee members must be independent and are barred from accepting censulting, advisory or other ¢
fees from the issuer. In addinon, all SEC-reporting companies must disclose whether at least one member
commitiee i an audit conumittee “financial expn:rt”~ {as such tem{is defined by the SEC rulesy and if ncg "
Audit commitiees of publicly traded companies will have authority 1o retain their own counsel and other
funded by the company, A;zdit commitiees must establish procedures for the receipt. retention ami;’gr av
complaints regarding accounting and auditing mateers and procedures for confidential, anonymous Subis
employee concemns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matiers. It is the responsibility of the 5
committee to hire, oversee and work on digagreements with the Company’s independent auditor. T

Reginning six months after the SEC determines Azhat the PCAOR is able to carry out its functiens
unlawful for any person thay is not 8 regiswred public accounting firm (“RPAF) to audit = SEC
company. Under the Act a rpAaF s pmhibited from per forming statutorily mandated audit services fora
f such company’s chief executive officer. chief financial officer, comptroller, chief accounting officer or any pe
serving in equivalent positions has been empmy_eé by such firm and participated in the audit of such comr
during the one-year period preceding fhe audit muaton ddic. SOX also prohibits any officer or di o
company or any other person acting under their direction _fmm taking any action to fraudulently influence, Co
manipulate or mislead any independent public of ccn}fzed accountant engaged in the audit of the Compan
financial statements for the purpose of rendering the financial statement’s materially misleading. The SE
prescribed rules requiring inclusion of an internal control report and assessment by management in the annual 1o
to shareholders. S0OX x’équires the RPAF that 1SSUes thc audit report to attest to and report on managens
assessment of the Company's internal controls. 10 addition, SOX requires that each financial report ;qujv s
prepared in accordance with (of reconciled t0) genémll}: faccepted accounting principles and filed with the
retlect all material correctiﬁg\adjustmems that are identified by a RPAF in accordance with generally acee

accounting principles and the rules and feg{l}é!{icns of the SEC.

Although the Company anticipates it will incur additional expense in complying with the provision '
Act and the related rules, management does not expect that such compliance will have a material impact o

Company’s financial condition of results of operalions.

Regulation and Supervision of the Bank

o extensive regulation by the Commissioner and the FDIC. The lending
activities and other investments of the Bank must cqmpiy with various regulatory requirements. The Commissiongr
-d FDIC periodically examine the Rank for compliance with these requirements. The Bank must file reports with
the Commissioner and the FDIC d escribing its activities and financial condition. The Bank is also subject to certam
reserve requirements promulgated bY the ?cdc{ai Reserve Board. This supervision and regulation 15 inten
primarily for the protection of depositors. Certain of these regulatory requirements are referred to below or appe

elsewhere herein.

General. The Bank is subject !

Capital Requirements. Under £DIC regulations, state-chartered banks that are not members of the Federa
Reserve System are required © maintain @ minimum leverage capital requirement consisting of a ratio of Tier,
capital 10 total assets of 3% if the FDIC determings that the institution is not anticipating or experiencing significan
growth and has well-diversified risk. including n¢ undue interest rate tisk exposure, excellent assel quality; higl
liquidity, good eamings and in general @ SWONE banking organization, rated composiie | under the Unifori,
Financial Institutions Rating System (the CAMELS rating system) established by the Federal Financial Institutions-
Examination Council. For all but the most highly rated institutions meeting the conditions set forth above, the”
minimum leverage capital ratio is 3% pius &7 additional “cushion™ amount of at least 100 to 200 basis points with &

less than 4%. Tier | capital is the sum of common stockholders

minimum leverage capial requirement of not 12 ‘
equity. noncumulative perpemzﬂ prefmed gstock (including any related surplus) and minority interests. 0 -

consolidated subsidiaries, minus all intangible assets (other than certain mortgage and non-mortgage servicing

17



" assets, purchased credit card relationships and qualifying supervisory goodwill) minus idehtified losses, disallowed
deferred tax assets and invesunents in financial subsidiaries and certain non-financial equity investments.

In addition to the leverage ratio (the ratio of Tier | capital o total assets), state-chartered nonmember banks
must maintain a minimum ratio of qualifving toral capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8% of which at least
four percentage points must be Tier 1 capital. Qualifving total capital consisis of Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 or
supplementary capital ttems. Tier 2 capital items include allowances for loan losses in an amount of up w0 1.23% of
risk-weighted assets, cumulative preferred stock and preferred stock with @ maturity of over 20 vears, certain other
capital instruments and up to 45% of pretax net unrealized holding gains on equity securities.  The includable
amount of Tier 2 capital cannot exceed the mnstitution’s Tier | capital. Qualifying total capital is further reduced by
the amount of the bank’s investments in banking and finance subsidiaries that are not consolidated for regulatory
capital purposes, reciprocal cross-holdings of capital securnies issued by other banks, most intangible assets and
certain other deductions. Under the FDIC risk-weighting system, all of a bank’s balance sheet assets and the credit
equivalent amounts of certain off-balance sheet items are assigned to one of four broad risk weight categories from
0% to 100%, based on the risks inherent in the type of assets or item. The aggregate dollar amount of each category
is multiplied by the risk weight assigned w that category. The sum of these weighted values equals the bank’s risk-
welghted assets,

At March 31, 2003, the Bank’s ratio of Tier | capital to average assets was 6.77%. its ratio of Tier 1 capital
to risk-weighted assets was 10.07% and its ratio of total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets was 11.08%.

Dividend Limitations. The Bank may not pay dividends on its capital stock if its regulatory capital would
thereby be reduced below the amount then required for the liquidation account established for the benefit of certain
depositors of the Bank at the time of its conversion 1o stock form.

Eamings of the Bank appropriated to bad debt reserves and deducted for Federal income tax purposes are
not available for payment of cash dividends or other distributions to stockholders withour payment of waxes at the
then current tax rate by the Bank on the amount of earnings removed from the reserves for such distributions. The
Bank intends to make full use of this favorable tax treatment and does not contemplate use of any earnings in a
manner which would limit the Bank’s bad debt deduction or create federal wax habilities.

Under FDIC regulations, the Bank is prohibited from making any capital distributions if afier making the
distnibution. the Bank would have: (1} a total risk-based capital ratio of less than §.0%; (i) a Tier | risk-based capital
ratio of less than 4.0%; or (i) a leverage ratio of less than 4.0%.

Depaosit Insurance. The Bank is required to pay assessments to the FDIC for insurance of is deposits by
the BIF based on a percentage of its insured deposits. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, the FDIC is
required to set semi-annual assessments for BIF-insured institutions at a rate determined by the FDIC to be
necessary {0 maintain the designated reserve ratio of the BIF at 1.23% of estimated insured deposits or at a higher
percentage of insured deposits that the FDIC determines to be justified for that vear by circumstances raising a
significant risk of substantial future losses to the BIF. In the event the BIF should fail o meet the statutory reserve
ratio, the FDIC would be required to set semi-annual assessments for BIF members that are sufficient to increase the
reserve ratio to 1.23% within one vear or in accordance with such other schedule that the FDIC adopis by regulation
to restore the reserve ratio in not more than 15 years.

The assessment rate for an insured depository msutunion 13 determined by the assessment risk classification
assigned to the mstitution by the FDIC based on the institution’s capnial level and supervisory evaluations. Based on
the data reponed to regulators for date closest 1o the last day of the fourth month preceding the semi-annual
assessment period, institutions are assigned 1o one of three capital groups — well capitalized, adequately capitalized
or undercapitalized — using the same percentage criteria as in the prompt corrective action regulations. See "--
Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action.” Within each capital group, institutions are assigned to one of three
subgroups on the basis of supervisory evaluations by the institution’s pnimary supervisory authority and such other
information as the FDIC determines to be relevant to the institution’s financial condition and the risk posed 1o the
deposit insurance fund.



%

The FDIC has adopted an assessment schedule for BIF deposit insurance pursuant to which the assessment
rate for well-capitalized institutions with the highest supervigory ratings bave been reduced to zero and institutions
in the worst risk assessment classification will be assessed at the rate of 0.27% of insured deposits. At March 31,
2003, the Bank is considered well capialized.  In addivon, FDIC-insured instifutions are required to pay
assessmenis to the FDIC fo help fund interest payments on certain bonds issued by the Financing Corporation
{“FICO™, an agency of the federal government established o finance takeovers of insolvent thrifts. Until December
31, 1999, BlF-insured institutions were required to pay FICO assessments at one-fifth the rate at which Savings
Association Insurance Fund {(“SAIF”) members were assessed,  After December 31, 1999, both BIF and SAIF
members have been assessed at the same rate for FICO pavments.

The FDIC has announced that the BIF reserve ratio had fallen below 1.25% as of March 31, 2003, The
FDIC has further indicated that in the event the BIF reserve ratio is expected to remain below the designazed reserve
ratio when the FDIC establishes the assessiment rate for the first half of 2003 dus fall, it will require BlF-insured
banks to begin paying a premium for deposit insurance.

All Massachusens chartered co-operative banks are required to be members of the Share Insurance Fund.
The Share Insurance Fund maintaing a deposit insurance fund which insures all deposits in member banks which are
not covered by federal insurance, which in the case of the Bank are its deposits in excess of $100,000 per insured
account. In past years, a premium of 1/24 of 1% of insured deposits has been assessed annually on member banks
such as the Bank for tus deposit insurance. However, no premium has been assessed in recent years.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory 4etion. Federal banking regulators are required to take prompt corrective
action if an insured depository institution {ails to satisfy certain mimmum capital requirements. including a leverage
limit, a risk-based capital requirement, and any other measure deemed appropriate by the federal banking regulators
for measuring the capital adequacy of an insured depository institution. Al institutions, regardless ot their capital
levels, are restricted from making any capital distribution or paving any management fees if the institution would
thereafter fail to satisty the mmimum levels for any of its capital requirements. An insttution that fails 1o meet the
minimum fevel for any relevant capital measure (an “undercapitalized institution”™) may be: (1) subject to increased
moniioring by the appropriate federal banking regulator; (31} required to submit an accepiable capital restoration plan
within 43 days; (1) subject to asset growth limits; and (iv) required to obtain prior regulatory approval for
acquisitions, branching and new lines of businesses. The capiial restoration plan must include a guarantee by the

institution's holding company that the institution will comply with the plan until it has been adequately capitalized

on average for four consecutive quarters, under which the holding company would be liable up 1o the lesser of 3% of
the institution’s total assets or the amount necessary 1o bring the institution into capital compliance as of the date it
failed to comply with its capital restoration plan. A “significantly undercapitalized”™ institution, as well as any
undercapitalized institution that does not submit an acceptable capital restoration plan, may be subject to regulatory
demands for recapitalization, broader application of restrictions on transactions with affiliates, limitations on interest
rates paid on deposits, asset growth and other activities, possible replacement of directors and officers, and
resrictions on capital distributions. by any bank holding company controlling the institution.  Any company
controlling the institution may also be required to divest the institution or the institution could be required io divest
subsidiaries. The senior executive officers of a significantly undercapitalized institution may not receive bonuases or
increases in compensation without prior approval and the insititution is prohibited from making payments of
principal or interest on its subordinated debt. In their discretion, the federal banking regulators may also impose the
foregoing sanctions on an undercapitalized institution if the regulators determine that such actions are necessary (0
carry out the purposes of the prompt corrective provisions. [ an institution’s ratio of tangible capital 0 total assets
falls below the “critical capital level” established by the appropriate federal banking regulator, the institution will be
subject 10 conservatorship or receivership within specified time periods. .
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Under the implementing regulations, the féderal banking regulators genérally measure an institution’s
capital adequacy on the basis of 1ts total risk-based capital ranio {the ratio of 1ts total capual to risk-weighted assets),
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio (the rade of is core capital to risk-weighted assets) and leverage ratio (the ratio of its
core capital to adiusted total assets). The following table shows the capital ratios required for the various prompt
corrective action categories.

Adequately Significantly
Well Capitalized Capitalized Undercapitalized Undercapitalized
Total risk-based
capital ratie 10.0% or more 8.0% or more Less than 8.0% Less than 6.0%
Tier 1 nisk-based :
capital ratio 6.0% or more 4.0% or more Less than 4.0% Less than 3.0%
Leverage ratio 3.0% or more 4.0% or more ¥ Less than 4.0% ® Less than 3.0%

* 3.0% if institution has a composite | CAMELS rating.

A “entically undercapiialized” mnsttution is defined as an institution that has a ratio of “tangible equity” to total
assets of less than 2.0%. Tangible equity is defined as core capital plus cumulative perpetual preferred stock (and
related surplus) less all intangible assets other than gualifying supervisory goodwill and certain purchased mortgage
servicing rights. The FDIC may reclassify a well capralized depository institution as adeguately capitalized and
may require an adeguately capitalized or undercapitalized institution to comply with the supervisory actions
applicable to institutions in the next lower capital category (but may not reclassify a significantly undercapitalized
institution as crivcally undercapitalized) if the FDIC determines, after notice and an opportunity for a hearing. that
the savings nstitution is in an unsafe or unsound condition or that the mstitution has received and not corrected a
fess-than-satisfactory rating for any CAMELS mting category,

Pairiot Act. The Patriot Act s mended to strengthen US, law enforcement’s and the intelligence
communities” abilities w work cohesively 1o combat terrorism on a variety of fronis. The potential impact of the
Patriot Act on financial institutions of all kinds is significant and wide ranging. The Patriot Act contains sweeping
anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and imposes vanous regulations including standards for
verifying client identification at account opening, and rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions,
regulators and law enforcement entities in idemifving parties that may be involved in terrorism or money laundering.

Loans to Executive Officers, Directors and Principal Srockholders. Loans to directors, executive officers
and principal stockholders of a state non-member bank hike the Bank must be made on substantiaily the same terms
ag those prevailing for comparable transactions with persons who are not executive officers. directors, principal
stockholders or employees of the Bank unless the foan s made pursuant to & compensation or benefit plan that is
widely available to employees and does not favor insiders. Loans o any executive officer, director and principal
stockholder together with all other outstanding loans to such person and affiliated interests generally may not exceed
13%6 of the bank’s unimpaired capital and surplus and all loans to such persons may not exceed the insutution’s
umimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Loans to directors. executive officers and principal stockholders. and
their respective affiliates, in excess of the greater of $23,000 or 3% of capital and surplus (up to $300,000) must be
approved in advance by a majority of the board of directors of the bank with any “interested™ director not
participating in the voting.  State non-member banks are prohibited from paying the overdrafts of any of their
executive officers or directors unless payment is made pursuant to a written, pre-authorized interest-bearing
extension of credit plan that specifies a method of repayiment or transfer of funds from another account at the bank,
Loans to exceutive officers may not be made on terms more favorable than those afforded other borrowers and are
restricted as to type, amount and terms of credit. o addition, Section 106 of the BHCA prohibits extensions of
credit to executive officers, directors, and greater than 10% siockholders of a depository institution by any other
institution which has a correspondent banking relationship with the institution, unless such extension of credit is on
substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and does
not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features. :

Transactions with Affiliates. A state non-member bank or its subsidiaries may not engage in “covered

ransactions” with any one affiliate in an amount greater than 10% of such bank’s capital stock and surplus, and for
all such transactions with all affillates a state non-member bank is Himited to an amount egual to 20% of capital
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stock and surplus. All such transections must alse be on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable. to the
bank or subsidiary as those provided 10 a non-affiliate.  The term “covered transacuon” includes the making of
loans. purchase of assets, 1ssuance of a guaraniee and similar other types of transactions. An affiliate of a state non-
member bank is any company or entity which controls or is under common control with the state non-member bank
and. for purposes of the aggregate limit on wransactions with affiliates, any subsidiary thar would be deemed a
financial subsichary of a pational bank. In a holding company context. the parent holding company of a state non-
member bank (such as the Company) and any companes which are controlled by such parent holding company are
affiliates of the state non-member bank. The BHCA and Regulation W further prohibit a depository institution from
extending credit to or offering any other services, or fixing or varying the consideration for such extension of credit
or service. on the condition that the customer obtain some additional service from the institution or cerwin of s
affiliates or not obtain services of a competitor of the institution, subject to certain Hmited exceptions.

Massachusents Staze Law, As 2 Massachusetis-chartered co-operative bank, the Bank is subject to the
applicable provisions of Massachusens law and the regulations of the Commussioner adopted thereunder. The Bank
derives its lending and investment powers from these laws, and is subject to periodic examination and reporting
requirements by and of the Commissioner, In addition, the Bank is required to make periodic reporis to the Co-
operative Central Bank. In 1990, legislation was enacted permitting banks nationwide to enter the Bank’s market
area and compete for deposits and loan eriginations. The approval of the Massachusens Commissioner of Banks is
required prior to any merger or consolidation, or the establishment or relocation of any office facility.

Emplovees
At March 31, 2003, the Company and the Bunk employed 94 full-time and 36 part-time employees. The
Company’s and Bank’s emplovees are not represented by any collective bargaming agreement. Management of the

Company and Bank considers its relations with its emplovees to be good.

Item 2. Properties

The Bank owns all its offices, except the Burlington and Malden branch offices, and the loan and
operations centers located in Somerville. Net book value includes the cost of land, buildings and improvements as
well as leasehold improvements, net of depreciation and/or amortization. At March 31, 2003, all of the Bank’s
offices were in reasonable condition and met the business needs of the Bank. The following table sets forth the
location of the Bank's offices, as well as certain information relating to these offices as of March 31, 2003 {dollars
in thousands):

Net Book

Year Value at
Office Location Opened March 31, 2003

Muain Office
399 Highland Avenue
Somerville, MA. ..o S O O P 1974 § 273
Branch Offices:
175 Broadway
ArIngron, MA s 1982 123
83 Wilmington Road
Burlington, MA i 1978(a) 2
1192 Boylston Street .
Chestnut Hill (Brookline), MA ... et nes 1954 127
137 Pleasant Street
Malden, MA st 1973(b) 22
846 Main Street
Melrose, MA e 1994 163




Net Book

Year Value at

Office Location Opened March 31. 2003
275 Mam Street
Woburm, MA e 1980 - § 439
198 Lexington Street
W ODUITL, M i e s et ae e e evae e 1974 163
Woburn High School
OB, M e e e 2002(c) 37
Operations Center
17 Inner Belt Road
Somervitle, MA . e 1994{d) b

Commercial Loan Center
401 Highland AVEnUe .. 2002{e)
Somerville, MA

in

Residential Loan Center
403 Highland Avenue
Somerville, MA . e 200205

i

{a)  The lease for the Burlington branch expires in 2007 with no renewal option.

(o) The lease for the Malden branch expires in 2003 with an option to extend the lease for one ten-vear term.
(<} The lease for the Wobura High School branch is for one vear, renewable annually,

{d}  The lease for the Operations Center expires in 20035 with no renewal option.

(e}  The lease for the Commercial Loan Center expires in 2006 with an option 10 extend for one three-year term.
{f) The lease for the Residenual Loan Center expures in 2003 with an option to exiend for one three-year term.

At March 31, 2003, the net book value of the Bank’s premises and equipment was 31.9 million.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Bank from time to time is mvolved as plaintiff or defendant tn various legal actions incident to iis
business, Except as described herein, none of these actions are believed to be material, either individually or
collectively, 1o the results of operations and financial condition of the Company or any subsidiary.

The Bank has been named as defendant in 2 civil suit filed March 28, 2002 in Middlesex Superior Court
under the caption Yi v. Ceniral Bank in which it is alleged, infer afia, that the Bank committed an unfair or deceptive
trade practice by failing to pay surplus_foreclosure proceeds to a junior lien holder in 1994, The plaitiff seeks
damages of $163,000 plus statutory interest of approximately $173,000 and has applied for a multiple damage award
under Chapter 93A of the Massachusetts General Laws which provides for up to treble damages if a vielation is
found to be willful or knowing. While the Bank believes that it has meritorious defenses to all such claims and
intends to vigorously defend against them, 4 setdement offer has been made to the plaintiffs’ counsel. however, no
response has been received.

The Company and certain present and former directors have been named in related federal and state count
lawsuits brought by PL Capital. LLC and affiliates ("PL Capital”y and alse by Lawrence B. Seidman and affiliates
{Seidman’™), respectively, current and former stockholders, in which PL Capnal has challengéd actions by the
directors including, among other things, a decision on setting the date for closing of the polls for voting at the 2002
Annual Meeting and the directors’ decision following that Anmual Meeting not 10 seek the sale of the Company. PL
Capital and Seidman have challenged the directors” determination that PL Capital and Seidman secretly acted in
concert in violation of the Company’s Sharcholder Righis Agreement ("Rights Plan™).

[
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After a review and recommendation by a Special Committee of the Board of Dirgs
Directors determined on January 28, 2003 that PL Capital. which owned 9.8% of Ceﬁ*‘fﬁ?&
secretly coordinated a November 4, 2002 block trade to place 8.3% of Company’s Ccmr;;§;} Ba ;3“ :
Seidman. Joseph Stilwell (“Stilwell”} and Robert Reichenbach (“Reichenbach™ téiwébv}ig}cf o
ownership limit set by the Sharcholder Rights Plan. As a result, the Special Cmgm“méegﬁggﬁ‘
determined that PL Capital, Seidman, Stitwell and Reichenbach (collectively, the “T’L» Ca ) 4
constitute an Acquiring Person under the Rights Plan. Seidmuan and PL (Liapi'{:;i‘ immeﬁiaz‘ciyigg e
the Massachusetts Superior Cmgn_ for Suffolk County o enjoin implementation of the R;tfﬁ‘jm%,
implemented would provide an issuance of one additional share of common stock for each fahzre a‘em {
alt of the Company’s shareholders other than the PL Capital-Seidman Group. The Mas;s;;chmgr %ﬁﬁ
entered an gx parie wmporary resfmining order. later extended to a preliminary injunction, enj»ai:"xﬂmgé
and its Board of Directors from implementing the Rights Plan pending trial on the merits. Féﬂ{f i
proceedings in Massachusetis ‘fgdemi and state courts. the parties have asked for rulines 05 the 1
applicable to the directors” decisions challenged by PL Capital and Seidman and on whether PL Co
Seidman can avoid application of the Rights Plan to them by virtue of Seidman’s sale of all of his m’@ Kl
Company. Seidman sold those shares immediately after his motion for summary judement in m&’ i%;iémg et
denied and contemporaneously with the federal court’s order that the applicable fegal siandard on the *’sf" icab
Rights Plan claims be determined by the state court and that trial then proceed as scheduled in the stamc‘tgg %
February 11 and February 26, 2003, respectively, the Company and s directors entered fnto settlement .a;érg
with Stilwell and Reichenbach {and their respective affiliates) and the litigation was subsequently Herne
respect to those parties only.) A

PL Capital's initial complaint was filed on October 1, 2002 in the United States Districy
District of Massachusetts and amended on November 12, 2002, challenging, respectively, the decisions.
Company’s Board of Directors concerning setting a date for closing the polls on voting for directors at
Annual Meeting and the Board of Directors” decision not to seek sale of the Company. {PL Capital’s
complaint alse challenged the directors” decision 1o re-elect Marat E. Santini and John F. Gilgun, Jr. rather tha
Capital’s nominees to the Board of the Bank and the Company’s reimbursement of legal fees for Joseph ahd-dehn
Doherty. and alleged unfair and deceptive trade practices within the meaning of Chapter 934 of the Massach
Geuneral Laws.) PL Capital’s requests for reliet were opposed by the Company and its directors and were denié
the court and dismissed on November 13, 2002, PL Capital and Seidman subsequently filed complaint ;
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County on January 30 and 31. 2003 challenging the directors® Rights
decision of January 28, .
the Court that PL Capital had filed related action in federal court (see above) and was already a party the
identical claims concerning the Righis Plan. {The Special Committee had filed in federal court on Tanuary 28,
secking a declaratory judgment that its decision under the Rights Plan complied with applicable Massachusetts
1o prevent such circumvention by PL Capital or Seidman) Accordingly, PL Capital and Seidman were order
the state court to proceed in federal court, where PL Capital had iminated action in October 2002, '

i’

PL Capital and Seidman have filed additional claims in the federal court challenging other decisions.
by the Company’s directors. PL Capital’s claims in the federal court against the Company, its divectors. the Centx
Cooperative Bank Employee Stock Qwnership Plan Trust {the “ESOP™) and the Joseph R. Doherty Family |
Partnership, L.P. also challenge the directors” approval of a loan from the Company to the ESQP and
interference with PL Capital’s voting rights as a result of the ESOP’s purchase of Reichenbach’s shares ©f
Company's common stock {in connecrion with Reichenbach’s decision to settle out of the hitigation}. PL Cap
further alleges that John Doherty, Joseph Doherty. the joseph R. Doherty Family Limited Partnership, L.P. apd e
ESOP (and its trustees) violated Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act'yiby

o

-

allegedly failing 1o disclose certain relationships and purported motives in connection with their ownership of th
Company’s stock. PL Capital also seeks a declaratory judgment that former director Garrett Goodbody and Girecor .
Richard Fates are entitled 10 indemnification from the Company with respect to the litigation. PL Capital s ¢ks
declaratory and injunctive refiel. money damages and attorneys’ fees. Seidman has also alleged in the federal co
in addition to claims concerning the directors” Rights Plan determination. claims similar o PL Capital's alleging
violation of Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act by John Doherty and Joseph Doherty and interference with
Seidman's voting rights by virtue of the ESOP’s purchase of Reichenbach’s shares of the Company’s comime
stock. Seidman seeks declaratory relief and attorneys’ fees. The Company has also sought a declaratory judgment
from both the state and federal courts seeking to resolve those litigations {and, in the federal court, the Company bas -
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also afteged that PL Capital and Seidman violated Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act by failing to disclose to the
Company, its sharcholders and the investing public their coordinated ownership of the Company’s stock).

The Company believes that all of PL Capial's and Seidman’s claims are without merit and intends to
defend them vigorously.

Item 4. Submission of Matters t¢ g Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter ot the fiscal vear covered
by this report.

PARTH

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Maiters

The Company’s commeon stock is guoted on the Nasdaq National Market™ under the svmbol “CEBK.™ At
March 31, 2003, there were {662,433 shares of the common stock outstanding and approximately 249 holders of
record, The foregoing number of holders does not reflect the number of persons or entities who held the stock in
nominee or “streel name” through various brokerage firms. In October 1996, the Company established a quarnerly
cash dividend policy and made its first dividend distribution on November 135, 1996 it has paid cash dividends on a
quarterty basis since initiating the dividend program.

The following tables hist the high and low prices for the Common Stock during each quarter of fiscal 2003
and fiscal 2002 as reported by the Nasdag National Market™, and the amounts and pavable dates of the cash
dividends paid during each quarter of fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002, The stock quotations constitute interdealer prices
without retail markups, markdowns or comumissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Common Stock Prices Cash Dividends {(payable dates)
Fiscal 2003 High Low Fiscal 2003 Amount
6/30/02 $31.95 $26.530 317402 $0.10
9/30/02 33.50 28.03 816/02 0.10
12731402 31.30 283 111502 0.12
3731703 36.35 30,11 2/14/03 0.12
Fiscal 2002 High Low Fiscal 2002 Amount
6/30/01 S26.00 317.50 518401 $0.10
Q30/01 2775 21.50 81701 0.10
12731700 26.99 21.00 11716401 0.10
373102 2975 25.00 21502 0.10
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jtem 6. Selected Financial Data
jes

palance Sheet

TOtBL ASSEIS oo e
Total Ioans.
{pvestments:

Available forsale i,

Held 10 MBIURY oo e
[IPOSHS . cttr et et e
BOTTOWINEZS (oot e e
rotal stockholders’ equity oo
Shares oUSAnding o,

gratements of Operations

Net interest and dividend InCOMe .ooovoveironn

provision for loan losses

Net gain {loss) froms sule and write-down of
IIVESITIENT SECUTTIIES evrvrsirevesreeessnaesrmeees e cees

Total nOn-interest eXpenses ..o
income before cumulative effect of
ACCOLUNUNE ChANES oo s coreerecevrvn e e
Net IRCOME oo s
£amings per common share after cumulative
effect of accounting change - diluted ...

gelected Ratics
[nterest rate SPread Lo e
~et vield on interesi-earning assels oo
EQUILY-TO-ESSEIS oo e s
Returm On average assels vefore cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle.........
Return on average stockholders” equity
pefore cumulative effect of change in
2CCOURNAE PrNCIPIE i
pividend payout ratio. i

At or for the Year Ended March 31,

2003 20082 2041 2000

1599

{Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data)

477208 S 468219 5 449337 S 409337
390,464 371,767 345,793 320,013
61111 73,884 49 38R 68316
287,959 261,907 287,167 238,339
144,576 164,000 121,000 111.006
39,343 38934 38212 37,397
1662 1,633 1,684 1.810

(308} (15h 680 1013
796 - -~ -
917 838 608 636
13,877 10,464 13,330 9,345
2187 2,860 300 3,567
2187 2.860 3,149 3,333
137 172 1.81 1.77
3.29% 2.85% 2.80% 311%
3N 3.36 338 364
.27 8.32 8.50 9.13
0.48 0.63 0.74 0.94
552 7.62 211 9.49
33.24 23.39 2242 20.67
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General

The operations of the Company and 15 subsidiary, the Bank, are generally influenced by overall economic
conditions, the related monetary and fiscal policies of the federal government and the regulatory policies of financial
institution regulatory authorities, mcluding the Comnussioner. the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC.

The Bank monitors s exposure to earmings {luctuations resulting from market interest rate changes.
Historically the Bank's carnings have been vuinerable to changing interest rates due to differences in the terms io
maturity or repricing of its assets and habilities. For example, in a rising interest rate environment. the Bunk's net
interest income and net income could be negauively affected as imerest-sensitive liabilities (deposits and
borrowings) could adjust more quickly to msing interest rates than the Bank's interest-sensitive assets (loans and
investments).

The following 13 a discussion and analysis of the Company's results of operations for the last three fiscal
years and is financial condition at the end of fiscal vears 2003 and 2002, Management's discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Management's discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations ure
based on the consolidated financial statemenss which are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Uniied States of America.  The preparation of such financial statements requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that aftect the reported amounts of assets, labilities, revenues and
expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and habihizes. On an ongoing basis. management evaluates its
estimates, including those related to the allowance for loan losses. Management buses its estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are beheved to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results
of which form the basis in making judgmens about the carrying values of assets that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results could differ from the amount derived from management’s estimates and assumptions
under different assumptions or conditions,

Management believes the allowance for loan losses policy is a critical accounting policy that required the
most significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The
allowance for loan losses is based on management’s ¢valuation of the level of the allowance required i relation 1o
the estimated loss exposure in the loan portfolic. Management believes the allowance for loan losses is a significant
estimate and therefore regularly evaluates it for adequacy by wking into consideration factors such as prior loan loss
experience. the character and size of the loan portfolio, business and econonuc conditions and management's
estimation of future losses. The use of different estimates or assumptions could produce different provisions for
loan losses. Refer to the discussion of Allowance for Loan Losses in the Business Section and Notes 1 and 4 1o
Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed description of management’s estmation process and methodology
refated to the allowance for loan losses.

Results of Operations

The Company reported net income of 32.2 million or $1.37 per diluted share for fiscal 2003, as compared
to $2.9 million, or $1.72 per diluted share for fiscal 2002 and $3.1 nuilion or $1.81 per diluted share for fiscal 2001,

The Company’s earmings in fiscal 2003 were adversely affected by two signmificant itpms, namely, state
legislation {the “REIT legistation™ passed in March 2003 that retroactively eliminated the dividends received
deduction on dividends received from the Bank's REIT subsidiary and legal fees incurred in connection with
litigation with certain of the Company’s shareholders.

[
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The REIT legislation resulted in an increase in the Company’s provision for income taxes of S835 thousand
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. In June 2003, & group of banks negotiated a settlement with the Massachuseus
Department of Revenue ("DOR™) and, as a result, the Bank will recognize in the first quarter of fiscal 2004 a
reduction in the Company’s provision for mcome tases of $374 thousand.

The lega] fees associated with the litgation with certain shareholders. who initially filed suit against the
Company in October 2002 following the annual meeting of sharcholders, totled approximately $873 thousand, net
of taxes. The Company has coverage under its directors” and officers” Hability insurance policy for reimbursement
of legal fees, subject to hmitations. incurred 1n connection with this Hugation. The extent of coverage 1s currently
being resblved with the insurance carrier. At March 31, 2003, the Company had not received any insurance
reimbursement and. accordingly. net income was reduced to the extent of legal fees tncurred.

The Company’s earnings decrease for fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001 was primarnily due to write-
downs of 5642 thousand in certain equity securities which had experienced a decline in fair value judged by
management to be other than wemporary, partially offset by higher net interest income.

Interest Rate Spread. The Company’s and the Bank’s operating results are significantly affected by 15 net
interest spread. which is the difference between the vield on loans and investments and the interest cost of deposits
and borrowings. The interest spread is affected by economic conditions and market faciors that influence nierest
rates, loan demand and deposit flows. The following table present average balances, interest income and expense
and vields earned or rates paid on all interest-carning assets and interest-bearing habilities for the years indicated.

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Enterest Caost Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Caost
{Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Interest-eaming asseis:
Mortgage joans., $370.505 24032 7.19% $334513 5 25413 7.66%
Other oans ... 7,997 386 5.90 7.219 716 9.92
Total Ioans. oo 378,502 25,33% 7.23 341732 26,329 7.7
Short-term investments .. 7,620 1258 3.92 7.457 487 6.53
INVESUnent Securities. .. v ean, 78.928 4466 584 62998 4,101 6.51
Total INVESTIMENTS v 86,548 4591 5.39 70435 4,588 6.51
Total interesi-caming assets ... 463,050 30,129 65.83 412,187 30917 7.50
Allowance for loan 10sses ... (3,287} €3.042)
Non-inerest-carning asseis.... . 144086 13,676
Total 88818 e Ay S42282%
Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equin:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
DEposits oo $248.027 § 3601 $248.274 8119 3.27 $ 249,753 10,087 4.04
Short-term horrowings oo 508 g 477 10 210 874 S8 6.64
Advances from FHLE of Boston ... 1585 083 7262 124,203 6,731 542 111,106 6,858 h 17
Towal interesi-bearing
habilities.. 12,872 LN 14.860 3.98 IeN733 17003 4.70
Non-interesi-bearing 20.382
Orher labilities..o 2,383
Taotl Habilities 401,970 384,498
Stockholders” equity .oocvcinn 32 38323
Toal labilities and stockholders’
equity §422
Netinerest and dividend income .. S.i4.413
Interestrate spread e

Net vield on inferesi-earning assets..



Rute/Volume Analysyis. The eflect on net mterest income of changes in mierest rates and changes in the
amounts of Iinterest-earning assets and interest-bearing habilities is shown in the following wble. Information is
provided on changes for the fiscal veuars indicated attributable to changes in interest rates and changes in volume.
Changes due to combined changes in interest rates and volume are allocated between changes in rate and changes in
volume proportionaliy to the change due to volume and the change due to rate,

2083 vy 2002 2002 vs. 2401
Changes due to Changes due to
increase (decrease) in: increase (deerease} in:
Volume Rawe Total Volume Rate Total

{In thousands)
interest icome:

Mortgage loans ... § 2,053 $iL388)  § 1,385 S 308y S(1L33% $(2,046})
Crher loans 40 {124y {84} 30 (76} {48)
Total income from {oans. ..o, 2993 {1,692% 1,301 (478 (1614 {2.092)
Short-term investments .. (393 {348} {741 639 (260 379
Investment securtties.. . ... 428 (1323 296 316 {447} 69
Total incoame from investments ... 35 {450 {4435y 143 (707 44%
Total interest and dividend income ... 3,028 217 $36 (2,320 {1.644)
Interest cxpense; ‘
DHEROSHS. crrerir oot (%3 (2310 (2.51%) {60 {1.908) {1,963}
Short-term DOITOWIRES (e vricrcne i {2y {hH (193 (2% (483
Advances from FHLB of Boston.............. 15249 {958} 531 738 {883) (127}
Total INErest eXPensT.. o o crrans j.322 (35104 {1,988} 678 {2,822y (2,143}
Net interest and dividend income oo, S Lsos S LA3s $ 2R84 5y 850 $..499

Interest and Dividend Income. The Company experienced a $2.8 million overall increase in net interest
and dividend income for the vear ended March 31, 2003 compared 1o fiscal 2002, Interest income on loans increased
by $1.3 million 10 $25.5 million due to a $43.2 million increase in average loan balances partially offset by a 48
basis point decline in the average rate camed. During fiscal 2003, the Bank commenced its mortgage banking
initiative and sought to increase s origination of residential mortgage loans and to eliminate the purchase of such
loans. With the continuing decline of interest rates which reached a fortv-vear low in fiscal 2003, the Bank was able
10 double its origination of such loans to $118.4 million of which $35.7 million were sold n the secondary market.
The Bank has continued to emphasize commercial real estate lending in order to diversify the loan pontfolio and
improve overall portfolio vield. Interest and dividend income on investments decreased by $445 thousand in fiscal
2003 due primarily to a 9 basis point decrease in the rate eamed on investments and a $7.0 million decrease in the
average balance of investments. The overall total average balance of interest-earning assets increased by 3363
million from fiscal 2002 1o fiscal 2003, and the average vield on all interest-earning assets decreased by 33 basis
points between the two fiscal years.

The Bank experienced a $499 thousand overall increase in net interest and dividend income for the vear
ended March 31, 2002 compared to fiscal 2001, Interest mcome on loans decreased by $2.1 million to $24.2 million
due o a $6.5 million decrease in average loan balances and a 47 basis point decline in the average rate earned.
During fiscal vear 2002, the Bank originated and purchased new loans amounting to $137.9 million, including $84.0
million during the fourth quarter of the year. 'With declining inferest rates, management had decided to slow down
the origination of fixed-rate residential loans during the first half of the vear. During the second half of the vear, the
Bank priced its residential loans more competitively which increased ongination volume. Additionally, interest and
dividend income on imvestments increased by 3448 thousand in fiscal 2002 due primarily to an $§23.0 million
increase in average total balances of investments partially offset by a 112 basis point decrease in the rate eamed on
investments. The overall towsl average balance of interest-carning assets increased by $16.6 million from fiscal 2001
1o fiscal 2002, and the average vield on all interest-eaming assets decreased by 67 basis points between the two
fiscal vears.



Interest Expense. For fiscal 2003, interest expense on deposits decreased by $2.5 million from $8.)
million in fiscal 2002 to §5.6 million in fiscal 2003, The decrease can be attributed primarily 10 a 101 basts point
reduction in the cost of deposits i fiscal 2003 reflecting the series of reductions in interest rates inttiated by the
Federal Reserve Board beginning 1o January 2001, Interest expense on borrowings incrzased 5330 thousand as the
average balance of borrowings rose 1o $133.6 million during fiscal 2003 from $124.7 million durnng fiscal 20602,
which was partially offset by a decrease of 74 basis poinis in the rate paid on these borrowings to 4.67% in fiscal
2003 from 5419 in fiscal 2002, There was an overall increase in the average balance of interest-hearing liabilities
of 830.7 million during fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002,

For fiscal 2002, interest expense on deposits decreased by $2.0 million from $10.1 million in fiscal 2001 10
$8.1 million in fiscal 2002. The decrease can be attributed primarily to a 77 basis point reduction in the cost of
deposits in fiscal 2002 reflecting the series of reductions in interest rates inivated by the Federal Reserve Board
beginning in January 2001 and the repricing of nearly 70% of certificates of deposit outstanding at March 31, 2001
in fiscal 2002, Interest expense on borrowings decreased S1735 thousand as the average balance of borrowings rose
to $124.7 million during fiscal 2002 from $112.0 million during fiscal 2001, which wes more than offset by a
decrease of 77 basis poins in the rate paid on these borrowings to 5.41%% in fiscal 2002 from 6.18% in fiscal 2001,
There was an overall increase in the average balance of interest-bearing lHabilities of $11.2 million during fiscal
2002 compared to fiscal 2001,

Provision for Loan Losses. Due o the high level of asset quality, as measured by low delinguency rates
and the absence of non-performing assets during the past two years, the Bank made no provision for loan losses
during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, At March 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank had no non-performing loans,

Non-interest Income. Totwal noun-interest income for fiscal 2003 was §1.4 million, compared o S688
thousand during fiscal 2002, During the second half of fiscal 2003, the Bank commenced its morigage banking
initiative and sold $35.7 million of fixed rate residential mortgage loans in the secondary market. These foans were
sold on a servicing released basis. The Bank realized a gain of $796 thousand on the sale of these Joans. Non-
mterest income in fiscal 2003 was adversely affected by the additional write-down of $803 thousand in certain
equity securities, which had experienced a decline in fair value judged to be other than temporary.

Total non-interest income for fiscal 2002 was $688 thousand, compared to $1.3 million during fiscal 2001,
The primary reason for the $600 thousand decline o fiscal 2002 was the write-down of 3642 thousand in certain
equity securities which had experienced a decline in fair value judged to be other than temporary and a decrease in
gains on the sale of securitics. Parually offseting this decrease was an increase in deposit service charges
attributable to an increase in core deposit accounts and, for the first time, brokerage income from the Bank's new
offering of investment products through a third party,

Nan-interest Expenses. Non-interest expenses increased $3.4 million during fiscal 2003, as compared 10
the vear ended March 31, 2002, This increase is due to increases in salaries and emplovee benefits (51.3 miltion),
data processing expenses ($170 thousand), professional fees (81.4 mithion). advertising (5133 thousand) and other
non-interest expenses {3726 thousand), paruially offset by the ¢limination of goodwill amortzation (S288 thousand).

Salaries and employee benefits increased by $1.3 million, or 23.4%, in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal
2002 due to several factors including additional lending personnel in both the residential and commercial real estate
areas, an overall salary mcrease of approximately 4%, additional ESOP expense associated with shares acquired
during the vear and bonuses earned in connection with the Bank’s management incentive compensation plan {(no
bonuses were eamed 1n fiscal 20021

Data processing expenses increased by $170 thousand. or 17.6%, in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002
due primarily 1o volume related charges for both data processing and item processing.

Professional fees increased by 51.4 mitlion in fiscal 2003 as compared 1o fiscal 2002 due primarily to legal
fees associated with pending litigation with certain of the Company’s shareholders and, to a lesser exient, legal and
other professional fees incurred in connection with the contested election of directors at the 2002 annual meeting of
stockholders. Professional fees incurred for such activities aggregated approximately $1.65 million in fiscal 2003,



Exclusive of such costs, professional fees would have been approximately $738 thousand in fiscal 2003, Future
legal fees associated with this litigation are hikely 1o be significant.

As previously noted, the Company has coverage under its directors” and officers” liability insurance policy
for reimbursement of legal fees, subject to limitations, incurred in connection with the sharehoider lingation, No
reimbursement of legal fees was received in fiscal 2003, Management is currently working with its insurance carrier
to ensure that the Company receives full reimbursement of all legal fees o which it is entitled. At this ume, no
esiimate of any future insurance recovery is avaiiable.

Advertising expense increased by 5133 thousand. or 31.0%, in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002 due
to increased promotion of the Bank’s expanded residential and commercial real esiate lending programs. During
fiscal 2002, the Bank had reduced its use of advertising 1o promote certificates of deposit.

Other non-interest expenses increased by $726 thousand, or 59.9%, in fiscal 2003 as compared 1o fiscal
2002. Such increase was due to several factors including the accrual for the Bank's portion of the estimated cost of
resolution of a commercial claim filed n 2002, as well as increases in ATM expense, memberships and
contribunions, communicadion costs and directors fees.

Non-interest expense increased $134 thousand during fiscal 2002, as compared io the vear ended March 31,
2001, Suach increase is primarily due 10 increases in professional fees of $294 thousand and data processing service
fees of 3119 thousand, partially offset by decreases in advertising of 3283 thousand and oceupancy and equipment
expenses of $68 thousand. Salaries and employee benefits, the largest component of non-interest expenses was
virtually unchanged during fiscal 2002,

The increase in professional fees of $294 thousand in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 was primarily
due to increased legal and consulting costs. The increase in data processing service fees was due to the change, in
November 2000, to a new data processing system more suitable to the Bank’s needs. The decrease in advertising of
$285 thousand occurred as the Bank curtailed its regular promotion of cerificates of deposit.

Salaries and employee benefits expense decreased approximately $9 thousand during fiscal 2002 despite a
$175 thousand mcrease in ESOP expenses due to the initial application of the fair value method of accounting for
the allocation of ESOP shares to employees, Prior to fiscal 2002, compensation expense was recognized as shares
were allocated to ESOP participants” accounts based on the cost of such shares to the ESOP, 1n future penods,
cormpensation expense relating to the ESOP may be significantly affected by the market value of the Company’s
commeon stock. '

Income Taxes. The effecuve rates of income tax expense for the vears ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 were 54 3%, 38.3% and 36.2%. respectively.  Exclusive of the impact of an additional state tax provision, as
described below. necessitated by recent tax legislation, the effective tax rate in 2003 would have been 36.8%.

The Governor of Massachusetts signed legislation on March 3, 2003, which expressly disallows deductions
for dividends received from a REIT, resulting in such dividends being subject to state taxation. In addition, the
legisiation applies retroactively to tax vears ending on or after December 31, 1999, In the fourth quarter of 2003, the
Company provided additional income taxes of 3833 thousand as a result of this legislation. Beginning in May 2002,
the DOR had sent assessment notices and, later, demand notices to Massachusetts financial institutions with REIT
subsidiaries asserting that the state statute providing for a 95% dividends received deduction on centain distributions
did not apply to dividends received from a REIT subsidiary. With the passage of the aforementioned legislation, the
focus of this disputed matter was changed from an interpretation of tax law tw the constitutionality of a retroactive
change in the law.

Given the significant financial impact of this issue on numerous Massachusetts financial institutions and
the considerable uncertainty of the constitutionality of the retroactive provisions of the legislation, a settlement was
reached in June 2003 among the DOR and the majority of affected financial institutions. This settlement provides
that 50% of all dividends received by the Bank from its REIT subsidiary from 1999 through December 2002 are
subject to state income taxes. In addition, interest on the related taxes is to be assessed. In settlement of this matter,



the Bank paid 3431 thousand in June 2003 and also recognized a reduction i s accrued tx liabilites of $374
thousand, which will increase net income by the same amount in the first quarter of fiscal 2004,

As a result of this legisiation, the Company’s effective tax rate 15 likely o increase closer to the effective
swatutory rate for Massachusetts financial institutions of approximately 40.9%. '

Financial Condition

Total assets at March 31, 2003 amounted o $477.2 million, an increase of $9.0 million from 5468.2 million
at March 31, 2002, Total assets at March 31, 2002 amounted 1o 34682 million, an increase of $18.9 million from
$449.3 million at March 31, 2001, During figeal 2003, increases in the Bank's core deposits were used o repay
FHLB advances, which coniributed to the modest asset growth in fiscal 2003,

Net loans increased S18.8 million 1o $387.2 million at March 31, 2003 from $368.4 million at March 31,
2002, At March 31, 2003, morteage loans were $383.9 million, 2 $20.6 million increase from March 31, 2002, The
increase in mortgage loans was entirely attributable to increases in commercial real estate and construction loans
which increased $20.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively. The growth In commercial real estate loans and
construction loans is attributable to the addition of experienced commercial lenders and expansion of the credit
administration function i recent vears. Residential mortzage loans decreased $8.7 million during fiscal 2003 and
represented 60.8% of loans at March 31, 2003 compared to 66.2% at March 31, 2002, During fiscal 2003, the Bank
commenced operation of its mortgage banking initiative, which resulted In the sale of 333.7 million 1n fixed rate
residential mortgage loans.

Total deposits ar March 31, 2003 were 5288.0 mallion, 2 $26.1 million increase from $261.9 milhon one
vear earlier. This increase is attributable o core deposit growth of $31.3 million. or 20.3%, partially offset by a
decrease in certificates of deposit of $5.2 million. The majority ol core deposit growth was in money market
accounts, the bighest paving core deposit account. This growth has been aided by the mtroduction and promotion of
the Bank's Conununity Package Accounr product, low interest rates and the contipuing uncertainty in the stock
market,

Advances from the FHLB of Boston decreased to $144.4 million at March 31, 2003 from S161.0 muilion at
March 31, 2002, The Bank decreased s borrowings from the FHLB of Boston in fiscal 2003 consistent with its
intent of reducing the utilization of FHLB advances.

Stockholders’ equity increased 1o $39.4 million at March 31, 2003 from $39.0 million at March 31, 2002
due to $3.8 mullion in comprehensive mcome, $516 thousand in proceeds from option exercises and $429 thousand
in armortization of uncarned ESOP compensation. The increases in these equity accounts were substanually offset
by §3.6 million in ESOP stock purchases and $727 thousand in dividends patd.

Liguidity

The Company’s primary sources of hiquidity are dividends from its bank subsidiary and repayments of the
ESOP loans. 1n addition. the Company has access o the capital markets to raise additional equity.

The Bank's principal sources of liquidity are customer deposits, amortization and repayments of loan and
morigage-backed security principal, FHLB of Boston advances and maturities of various other investments, These
various sources of liquidity, as well as the Bank's ability to sell residenuial mortgage loans in the secondary market,
are used to fund deposit withdrawals, loan originations and investments,

Deposits have been a relatively stable source of funds for the Bank despite significant gompetition. During
fiscal 2003, deposit balances increased by $26.1 mullion to $288.0 million from $261.9 million at March 31, 2002.
The mix of deposits changed significantly during fiscal 2003 with tenm deposit certificates decreasing $5.2 million
while core deposit accoums increased 3313 million. This shift occurred due to several factors including the low
interest rate environment that prevailed throughout the year, the Bank’'s emphasis of s core deposit products and
less aggressive pricing of term deposits.




The Bank is a member of the FHLB of Bosion and bas the abihity 1o borrow from the FHLB of Boston for
any sound business purpose for which the Bank has legal authonity, subject to such regulations and limitations as
may be prescribed. At March 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank had outstanding FHLB of Bosion advances of §144.4
million and $161.0 million. respectively. The FHLB of Boston advances are secured by a blanket lien on residential
first mortgage loans. U.S. Government and agency secunities and all stock in the FHLB of Boston. At March 31,
2003, the Bank had approximately 526.0 million in unused borrowing capacity at the FHLB of Boston.

The Bank also may obtain funds from the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston by pledeing certain of the
Baak's notes and drafts and is party 10 a retail CD brokerage agreement with a major brokerage firm. The Bank
views these borrowing facilities as secondary sources of Hyuidity and has had no need to use them,

Az March 31, 2003, cutstanding commitments o originate mortgage loans totaled $33.3 mullion, and
commitments for unadvanced funds on home equity, commercial and construction loans totaled $23.4 million. At
March 31, 2003, the Bank also had $4.8 million in commitments to sefl residential mortgage loans. Management
believes that the Bank has adequate sources of liquidity to fund these comminments,

Capital Resources

The Company and the Bank are reguired 1o mamntain minimum capital ratios pursuant to federal banking
regulations. The first standard establishes a risk-adjusted ratio relating capital to ditferent categornies of balance sheet
assets and off-balance sheet obligations. Two categories of capital are defined: Tier 1 or core capital (stockholders'
equity} and Tier 2 or supplementary capital. Total capital is the sum of both Tier | and Tier 2 capital. According t©
the standards, Tier | capital must represent at least 30% of qualifving total capital. At March 31, 2003, the minimum
wial risk-based capital mtio required was 8.00%. The Company’s and the Bank's risk-based total capital ratios at
March 31. 2003 were 12.05% and 1 1.08%, respectively,

To complement the risk-based standards, the FDIC adopted a leverage ratio {adjusted stockholders’ equity
divided by total average assets) of 3% for the most highly rated banks and 4%-3% for all others. The leverage ratio
1s 10 be used in tandem with the risk-based capital ratios as the minimum standards for banks. The Company’s and
the Bank's leverage ratios were 7.41% and 6.77%, respectively, at March 31. 2003,

Jtemn 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Bank's carnings are largely dependent on its net interest income. which is the difference between the
vield on interest-caming asseis and the cost of interest-bearing liabilities. The Bank seeks to reduce its exposure ©
changes in interest rate, or market risk, through active monttoring and management of its mterest-rate risk exposure.
The policies and procedures for managing both on- and off-balance sheet activities are established by the Bank's
asset/liability management committiee (FALCO™). The Board of Directors reviews and approves the ALCO policy
annually and monitors related activities on an ongoing basis.

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates. The Bank's market risk
arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in its lending, borrowing and deposit taking activities,

The main objective in managing interest rate risk is 1o minimize the adverse impact of changes in interest
rates on the Bank's net interest income and preserve capital, while adjusting the Bank's asset/liability structure to
control interest-rate risk. However, a sudden and substanual increase or decrease in interest rates may adversely
impact earnings to the extent that the intevest rates borne by assets and liabilities do not change at the same speed, o
the same extent, or on the same basis.

The Bank quantifies its imferest-rafe risk exposure using a sophisticated simulation model. Simulation
analysis is used 1o measure the exposure of net interest income to changes in interest rates over a specific time
horizon. Simulation analysis involves projecting future interest income and expense under various rate scenarios.
The simulation is based on actual cash flows and assumptions of management about the future changes in interest
rates and levels of activity {loan originations. loan prepayments, deposit flows, etc). The assumptions are inherently
uncertain and, therefore, actual resubis will ditfer from simulated results due to tming, magnitude and frequency of



interest rate changes as well as changes m market conditions and strategies. The net interest income projection
resulting from use of actual cash flows and management's assumptions s compared, to net interest income
projections based on an immediate shift of 300 basis points upward and 100 basis points downward (130 basis
pomts for 2002). The 2003 rate was lowered due w0 the continuing decline in interest rawes. Internal guidelines on
interest rate risk state that for everv 100 basis points immediate shifl in interest rates, estimaied net interest income
over the next twelve months should decline by no more than 5%.

The following table indicates the estimated exposure. as a percentage of estimated net interest income, for
the twelve month period following the date indicated assuming an immediate and paraliel shift for all market rates
with other raies adjusting to varying degrees in each scenario based on both historical and expected spread
relationships:

Murch 31,

2003 2002
300 basis point INCrease i1 TaeS .o (7.6)% (12.9%%
100 basis point decrease mn rates (2003 only) e (2.00%
130 basis point decrease in rates (2002 only) e 0.5%

For each one percentage poini change in net interest income in the 2003 projections, the effect on net
income would be 3105 thousand assuming a 40% tax rate.
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CENTRAL BANCORPINC. AND SUBSIDIARY -

Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Short-term mvesunents

Cash and cash equivalents

Investrnent securities available tor sale {amortized cost of $39,500
1 2003 and $74.935 1n 2002) (note 23
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston, at cost (notes 2 and 7)
The Co-operative Central Bank Reserve Fund (note 2)
Total invesunents
Loans (note 3)
Less allowance for loan losses (note 4)
Net loans

Accrued interest recetvable
Banking premises and equipment, net (note 5)
Deferred tax asset. net {note &)
Goodwill, net (note 1)
Other asserts
Total agsets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Liabilities:
Depuosits (note 6)
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (notes 2 and )
Shon-term borrowings
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total habilities
Commuments and Contingencies {notes 8, 9 and 12)
Stockholders' equity (note 10):
Preferred stock 31.00 par value; authorized 5,000,000 shares; none issued
Common stock 51.00 par value: authorized 15,000,000 shares;
2,027,727 shares tssued at March 31, 2003 and
1,599 388 shares issued at March 31, 2002
Additional paid-in capital
Retwined income
Treasury stock (363,294 shares at March 31, 2003 and
2002), at cost
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss)
Uneamed compensation - ESOP {(note 11}
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income
{In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Interest and dividend income:
Mortgage loans
Other loans
Short-term investments
Investments
Total interest and dividend income
Interest expense:
Deposits
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston
Shert-term borrowings
Total interest expense
Net interest and dividend income
Provision for loan losses {note 4)
Net interest and dividend income after
provision for loan losses
Non-interest mcome:
Deposit service charges
Net gains (losses) from sales and write-downs
of investment securities {note 2}
Gain on sale of loans
Brokerage income
Other mcome
Total non-interest income
Non-interest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits (note 11)
Occupancy and equipment (note 33
Data processing service fees
Professional fees
Advertising
Goodwill amortization (note 1)
Other expenses
“Total non-interest €Xpenses
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes {note 8)
Net income
Earnings per common share (note 1)
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic

Weighted average common and equivalent shares
outstanding — diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidaied financial statements.

Years Ended March 31,

1,569

tod
W

2003 2002
24952 3 23,367
586 670
125 366
4.460 4.170
30,129 29273
3,601 8.119
7,262 6,731
9 10
12.872 14,860
17,257 14,413
17.257 14413
571 442

280
525613
716
487

10,087
5838
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The Bank’s other comprehensive income (loss) and related tax ¢f

et for the vears ended March 31 are as follows:

2003
Before-Tax Tax {Benefiny
in thousands Amount Expense
Unrealized gains {losses) on securniiic
Unreahized net holding gains during period S s on
Less reclassification adjusiment for net losses included in net income 5
Other comprehensive income 3 S 086
2002
Before-Tax  Tax (Benefin)
In thousands Amount Expense
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities:
Unrealized net holding losses during period S (451} $ {163
Less reclassification adfustment for net losses included in net income 150 37
Other comprehensive loss $ (301) S {106)
2001
Before-Tax Tux {Benefin)
in thousands Amount Expense
Unrealized gains (losses) on securiiies:
Unrealized net holding gains during period $ 1,188 $ 360
Less reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income (620} {246}
Other comprehensive income 3 308 5 114

See accompanying notes 10 consotidated financial statements,

Lad
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CENTRAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Consohidated Sttements of Cash Flows
{In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments o reconctle net income 1o net cash provided
by operanng activities
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of premiums and discounts
Amaortization of goodwill
Stock-based compensation
Decrease (merease) in deferred tax assets, net
Net (gans) losses {rom sales and write-downs of
investment securities
Gain on sale of foans
Originations of loans held for sale
Proceeds from the sale of loans originated for sale
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable
{{ncrease) decrease in other assets
Increase {decrease} in advance paviments by borrowers for
taxes and msurance
increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from invesung activities:
Net increase in loans
Principal payments on mortgage-backed securities
Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Maturities and redemptions of investment securities
Purchase of stock in FHLB of Boston
Purchase of banking premises and equipment, net
Net cash used in invesiing activities
Cash Hows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Proceeds from FHLB advances
Repaymenis of FHLB advances
Net increase {decrease} in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Payments of dividends
Purchase of stock by ESOP
Other equity transactions
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the pertod for
Interest
Income taxes

See accompanying notes to consolidated {inancial statements,

Years Ended March 31,

2003

s 2187

314
269
42

(462)

W

308
{798)
(36,364}
36,513

{(18.110)
7426

(6.210)
7.638
6,000

26,052
39,600

(35.600)
{2.824)
316

(727
{3.595)

S O12938
5 2820

(]

2002

(104)
109

{109}

309
4,176

(25,728)
7.246

(61.256)
2.885
26.000

(2.150)

(190

@Y 1

(25,260)
63.000
(25.000)
3.000

492
{1.924)
{669
(199)

14 883

1713

20061

S

3409

(390)
(307

167

.

e {3G)
2.947

{25.667)
4,069

{6,170
3,953
4,000

{330

(238%)

(20401

EREAIR. 14

(

28,828
152.000
142,000}
(2.187)
(697)




CENTRAL BANCORP. INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to (fonsoiiéa:ed Financial Statements ‘

March 31,2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial smiements include the accounts of Central Bancorp, Ing {ﬂm

. - . . * - 4
“Company™. a Massachusetis corporation, and ity whelly-owned subsidiary, Central Co-operative Bank (the
“Bank™. S

The Bank was organized as a Massachusetts chartered co-operative bank in 19135 and converted
mutual o stock form in 1986, The primary business of the Bank 15 10 generate funds in the form of deposits ang
the funds 1o make mortgage loans for the consiruction, purchase and refinancing of residential properties, ang
make loans on commercial real estate in its market area. The Bank is subject to competition from other fing il
institutions. The Company is subject to the regulations of, and periodic examinations by, the Federal Reserve Basg
("FRB"). The Bank 15 also subject to the regulations of, and periodic examination by, the Federal Deposit Insum ’{:{e
Corporation {"FDIC") and the Massachusetts Division of Banks. The Bank’s deposits are insured by the B &
Insurance Fund of the FDIC for deposits up 10 $100.000 and the Share Insurance Fund (“SIF™) for deposits in excn
of $100.006. :

The Company conducts its business through one operating segment. the Bank.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with aceo. ting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amertca.  All significant intercompany balances 4n
transactions have been eliminated in conselidation. In preparing the consolidated financial statements. manacensé;
is reguired to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repotted amounts of assets and liabilities as of i?ie@al’e‘
of the balance sheet and income and expenses for the vear. Actual results could differ from those estimate
Material estmaies that are particularly susceptible to change relate to the determination of the allowance for 1
losses.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform 1o the current year's presentation,
following 15 a summary of the more sigmificant accounting policies adopted by the Bank.

Cash and Due from Banks

The Bank is required to maintain cash and reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank. Such res
are caleulated based upon deposit levels and amounted to approximately $3.241.000 at March 31, 2003,

Imvestments

Investments are classified as either held 0 maturity, available for sale or tradine. Investments claossifiét
trading securities are reported at fair value. with unrealized gains and losses include:i in eamings. Invesiments
classified as available for sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported
comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity. Securities that the Bank has the positive intent and
1o hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost,

are amortized or acereted o interest income over the actual or expected fives of the securities using the level
method.

If a dectine in fuir value below the amortized cost basis of an investment is judged to B
temporary, the cost basiy of the investment is writien down to {air value as a new cost basis and the amount
write-down is included in the resulis of operations.

Loans

Loans are reporied at the principal amount outstanding, adjusted by unamortized discounis, premit

net deferred loan origination costs and fees. Loans classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of aggregaic ©
or market value, The Company enters into forward commitments o sell loans in order to reduce M

associated with the origination of loans held for sale. Market value is estimated based on outstanding 1n¥



commitments or, it the absence of cash commilments, current investor vield requirements. Net unrealized losses, if
any. are provided for in a valuation allowance by charges w operations.

Loans on which the accroal of interest has been disconunued are designated as non-acerual loans. Accrual
of interest on loans and amortization of net deferred loan fees or costs are discontinued either when reasonable doubt
exists as to the full and tmely collection of interest or principal, or when a loan becomes contractually past due 90
days with respect to interest or principal. The accrual on some loans, however, may continue even though they are
more than 90 davs past due if management desms it appropriate. provided that the loans are well secured and in the
process of collection. When a loan is placed on non-accrual siatus, all interest previousiy accrued but not coltected
is reversed against current period interest income. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are
brought fully current with respect 1o interest and principal and when, n the judgment of management, the loans are
esumated to be fully collectible as 1o both principal and mierest, The Bank records interest income on non-accrual
and impaired loans on the cash basis of accounting,

Loan origination fees, net of certain direct loan origination costs, are considered adjustments of interest-rate
vield and are amortized into interest income over the contractual loan term using the level-vield methed. At March
31,2003 and 2002, the Bank had net deferred loan fees of 5781000 and $692.000. respectively.

Loans are classified as impaired when it is probable that the Bank will not be able to collect all amounts
due 1 accordance with the coniractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans, except those loans that are
accounied for at fair value or at lower of cost or fair value, are accounted for at the present value of the expected
future cash flows discounted at the foan's effective interest rate or as a practical expedient in the case of collateral
dependent leans, the fower of the fair value of the collateral or the recorded amount of the loan. Management
considers the payment status, net worth and earnings potential of the borrower, and the value and cash flow of the
collateral as factors to determine i 2 loan will be paid in accordance with its contractual terms, Management does
not set any minimum delay of payments as a factor in reviewing for impaired classification. Impatred loans are
charged off when management believes that the collectihility of the loan's principal is remote. Management
considers non-accrual loans, except for smaller balance. homogeneous residential mortgage loans. to be impaired.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is mamtained at a level determined {o be adequate by management o absorb
future charge-offs of loans deemed oncollectible. This allowance 18 increased by provisions charged to operating
expense and by recoveries on loans previously charged off, and reduced by charge-ofis on loans.

Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses necessarily involves a high degree of
judgment. The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management’s systematic periodic review of the collectibility of the loans. Primary considerations in this evaluation
are prior loan loss experience, the character and size of the loan portfolio, business and economic conditions and
management’s estimation of future losses, The Bank evaluates specific loan status reporis on certain comimercial
and commercial real estate loans rated “substandard™ or worse. Estimated reserves for each of these credits 15
determined by reviewing current collateral value, financial informaton, cash flow, payment history and trends and
other relevant facts surrounding the particular credit. The remaining commercial and commercial real estate loans
are provided for as part of pools of similar loans based on 2 combinaton of historical loss experience and qualitative
adjustments. Smaller balance, homogeneous loans, including residential real estate loans and consumer loans, are
evaluated as a group by applving estimated charge off and recovery percentages, based on historical experience and
certain qualitative factors, to the current outstanding balance in each categorv. Based on these analyses, the resulting
allowance 15 deemed adequate 10 absorb all probable credit losses in the portfolio.

Although management uses available information © establish the appropriate level of the allowance for
foan losses, future additions 1o the allowance may be necessary based on estimates that are susceptible to chapge as
a result of a changes in economic conditions and other factors. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an
integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies
may require the Bank to recognize adjustments to the allowance based on their judgments about information
available to them at the time of their examination. Changes in estimates are provided currently in earnings.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and labilities are recognized for the furure tax consequences atiributable to differences
between the accounting basis and the tax basis of the Bank's assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expecied to apply to taxable income n the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be realized or settled. The Bank's deferred tax asset 15 reviewed periodically and
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adjustments [0 such asser are recognized as deferred income iax expense or benefit based on management's
judgments relating 1o the realizability of such asset.

Banking Premises and Equipment

Land is stated at cost. Buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are stared at cost, Jess allowances
for depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets or ierms of the leases, if shorter.

Goodwil]

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Asses” ("SFAS 1427) which is effective for fiscal vears
beginning after December 135, 2001, The Company adopted SFAS 142 as of April 1, 2002, SFAS 142 addresses the
method of dentifying and measuring goodwill and other intangible assets having indefinite lives acquired in a
business combination. eliminates further amortization of goodwill, and requires periodic impairment evaluations of
goodwill using a fair value methodology prescribed in the statement.  As a resudt of adopting SFAS 142. the
Company no longer amorizes the goodwill balance of $2.232,000. which reduced goodwill amoruzation and
increased net income by S2ER000 in 2003, An inival impairment test was performed during 2003 and another
impairment test was completed at year-¢nd and in each analysis, it was determined that an impairment charge was
not required. Impairment testing is required at least annually or more frequently as a result of an event or change in
circumstances {e.g. recurring operating losses by the acquired entity) that would indicate an impairment adjustiment
may be necessary.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of net income and earnings per share excluding goodwill
amortization for the vears ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 (Dollars in thousands, except per share datay:

2002 2001
Reported Nt INCOMIE oot icree et cre e S 2860 5 3,109
Add back:

Goodwill aMOTtZANON o 23R 288

Adusted nel INCOMIC. .ot i e s S 3048 S 3397
asic earnings per share:

Reported net IBCOME oot e vt s 173 § 18I

Add back: '

Goodwill amortizalion ... 0.18 A Y
Adjusted net income. ... . s 198
Diluted earnings per share:

Reporied net MICOME i e s 172 $  1.81
Add back:

Goodwill amOrtization ... ccreeris s 017

Adjusted pet income........ BTSNV TOPR R S LR

Pension Benefits

The Bank provides pension benefits for s employees in a8 mult-employer pension plan through
membership in the Co-operative Banks Employees Retirement Association. Pension costs are funded as they are
accrued and are accounted for on a defined contribution plan basis.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company {ollows the intrinsic value method set forth in APB Opinion No. 23 "Accounting for Stock
issued to Emplovees” (APB No. 23) under which there is generally no charge o eamings for stock option grants.
Companies that efect 1o use this method are required to disclose the pro forma effect of using the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation that is encouraged by SFAS No. 123,
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No options were granted during fiscal 2003 and 2002 and forfeitures during these vears were insignificant,
Consequently. no material difference in net income occurred in fiscal 2003 and 2002 as a result of the Company’s
use of the intrinsic value method rather than the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation. Had
the Company determined compensation expense based on the fair value at the grant date for 1s stock options, the
Company's net mcome and earnings per share tor fiscal 2001 would have been as follows:

Earnings Per Share

Net Income Basic Diluted
As reported S 3,109 SHLRI 51.81
Pro Forma 2934 171 1.71

The per share weighted average fair value of stock options granted during 2001 was $5.39 on the date of
grant. This fair value was determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions:

Expected dividend vield 2.00 %
Risk-free interest rate 5.20
Expected volatility 31.00
Expected life in years 6.00

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share ("EPS"} is computed by dividing income avatlable to common stockholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Unallocated ESOP shares are not
considered outstanding in computing basic EPS. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common stock, such as stock options, were exercised or converted into comumon
stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

. In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS Swatement No. 123, 10 provide alternative methods of
transition for 2 volumary change to the fair value based method of accounting for siock-based employee
compensation. Companies are able to eliminate a “ramp-up” effect that the SFAS No. 123 wansition rule creates in
the year of adoption. Companies can choose to elect a method that will provide for comparability amongst years
reported.  In addition, this Swatement amends the disclosure requirement of Statement 123 to require prominent
disclosures in both annual compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The amendments to
SFAS No. 123 are effective for financial statements for fiscal vears ending after December 15, 2002, The Company
is not currently considering the adoption of fair value based compensation of stock options.

Note 2. Investments (Dollars in Thousands)

The amortized cost and fair value of investrents securities available for sale are summarized as follows:

March 31, 2003

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

U8, Government and agency obligations $ 8.000 S 247 $ - S 8.247
Corporate bonds 36912 2.006 (19D 38,727
Mortgage-backed securities 11,840 298 {82) 12,036
Total debt securities 536,752 2.551 (273) 59,030
Marketable equity securities 2748 32 (699} 2.081

Total ‘ 3.22.300 2 2an 3




Muarch 31, 2002

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair

Cost Cains Losses Value
U.S. Governunent and agency obligations $13,993 s 73 S (7 $ 13.996
Corporate bonds 39.012 23 (673) 38,568
Mortgage-backed securities 18,377 168 (205} _18.340
Total debt securities 71,384 472 952) 70,904
Marketable equiry securities 3.351 17 _(38%) 2980

Total

S.01.5340) 373,884

The maturity distribution (based on contractual maturities) and annual vields of debt securities at March 31,
2003 are as follows:

Amaortized Fair Annual
Cost Value Yield
Due within one vear § 516 6.57 %
Due after one year but within five vears 33,257 6.84
Due after five years but within ten years 13,573 7.09
Due after ten vears 9.684 6.30
6.80

Mortgage-backed securities are shown at their contractual maturity dates but actual maturities may differ as
borrowers have the right to prepay obligations without incurring prepayment penalties.

Proceeds from sales of mvestment securities and related gams and losses for the years ended March 31,
2003, 2002, and 2001 (all classified as available for sale) were as follows:

2603 2002 2001
Proceeds from sales $7.638 52,885 $3.955
Gross gains 495 546 694
Gross losses -- 34 14

During the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank recognized write-downs in certain cquity
seeurites totaling $803 and $642, respectively, as a result of declines in the tair value of such securities judged to be
other than temporary. These write-downs are not included in the preceding table.

A mongage-backed security pool with an amortized cost of 32,566 and fair value of §2,642 at March 31,
2003, was pledged to provide collateral for customers, In addition, investment securities carried at $3,628 were
pledged under a blanket lien to partially secure the Bank’s advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston
{(“FHLB of Boston™).

As a member of the FHLB of Boston, the Bank is required to invest in stock of the FHLB of Boston in an
amount equal to 1% of its outstanding home loans or 1720th of its outstanding advances from the FHLB of Boston,
whichever is higher. If such stock is redeemed, the Bank will receive from the FHLB of Boston an amount equal o
the par value of the stock.

The Co-operative Central Bank Reserve Fund (the “Fund™) was established for liquidity purposes and
consists of deposits required of all insured co-operative banks in Massachusetts. The Fund is used by The Co-
operative Central Bank to advance funds o member banks or to make other investments.
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Note 3. Loans (In Thousands)

Loans as of March 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized-below:

2003 2002
Real estate loans: ’
Residential real estate $237.296 $246.043
Commercial real estate 107.140 87.013
Construction 30.294 20,998
Second mortgage and home equity lines of crednt 9128 9354
Total real estate loans _383.858 363.210
Commercial loans 5.319 6,901
Consumer loans oha2s 1596
Towul loans 390,464 371.707
Less: allowance for loan losses { ? 72»»% (3.292)
Total loans, net . 5387180 §568 413

Included in residential real estate loans at March 31, 2003, were 5647 in loans held for sale.

The Bank had no non-accrual loans at March 31, 2003 and 2002, During the vears ended March 31, 2003
2002 and 2001, there were no impaired loans. The Bank follows the same policy for recognition of income on
impaired loans as it does for all other foans.

Mortgage loans serviced by the Bank for others amounted to $1.36]1 and $2.616 at March 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively,

The Bank's lending activities are conducted principaliy in communities in the suburban Boston area. The
Bank grants mongage loans on residental propenty, commercial real estate, construction of residential homes,
second mortgages, home equity and other loans. Substantially all loans granted by the Bank are secured by real
estate collateral. The ability and \uiimoness of :c»;dumai mortgage borrowers to honor their repayment
commitments are generally -ynpacted by the level of overall economic activity within the borrowers’ geographic
areas and real estare values. The abality and mlimgms of commercial real estate and construction loan borrowers w
honor their repavment commiiments are generally impacted by the health of the real estate market in the borrowers
geographic area and the general economy.

The following summarizes the activity with respect o loans made to directors and officers and their related
interests for the vears ended March 31

2003 2002
Balance at beginning of vear S 863 5 380
New loans 444 434
New officers with loans outstanding - 64
Repayment of principal 390 (215

S 863

Balance at end of vear

Loans inchuded above were made in the Bunk's ordinary course of business, on substantially the same
terms. including interest rates and collateral requirements, as those prevailing at the time for comparable wansactions
with unrelated persons. All teans included above are performing in accordance with the terms of the respective loan.
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Note 4. Allowance for Loan Losses (In Thousands)
A summary of changes in the aflowance for Jogn losses follows:

Years ended Mareh 31,
2003 2002 206

Balance at beginning of vear $ 3262 § 3.106 $ 269
Provision charged to expense - . o
Amounts charged-off (21) ) 4)
Recovernies on accounts previously charged-off 13 ‘ 199 117

Balance at end of vear 28 $.3292 $_3.106

Note 5. Banking Premises and Equipment {In Thousands)

A summary of cost, sccumulaied depreciation and amortization of baoking premises and equipment gt
March 31 follows:

Estimated
2002 Useful Lives ™
l.and S 389
Buildings and improvemenis 2.339 30 years
Fumniture and fixtures 5.744 3-5 vears
Leasehold improvements 482 5-6 years
9,154
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (7.318)
Total ' S L&36

Depreciation and amortization for the vears ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounted to $314. $37
and $438, respectively. and is included m occupancy and equipment expense in the accompanying consolidat
statements of income. ;

A sunmary of minimum rentals of banking premises for future periods under non-cancelable operating
leases follows:

Years Ending March 31,

2004 - § 133
2005 133
2006 80
2007 64
2008 40

Certain leases contain renewal options the potential impact of which is not included above. Rental expense
for the vears ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $145, $133 and $123, respectively, and is included in
occupancy and equipment expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. '

FN
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Note 6. Depesits (Dollars in Thousands)

Deposits at March 31 are summanzed as follows:

2003 2002

Demand deposit accounts 5 30523 S 23370
NOW accounts 38.047 36,277
Passbook and other savings accounts 71,629 72,944
Money market deposit accounts 42,687 17.997
Total non centificate accounts 183 836 152,388

Term deposit certificates
Centificates of S100 and above 26,239 27.233
Ceruficates less than S100 77.814 _ 82.086
Total term deposit certificates 104,073 109319
3t S 261,907

Contractual maturities of term deposit certificates with weighted average interest rates at March 31, 2003
are as follows:

Amount Rate

Within | vear S 56,958 2.83%
Over 110 3 vears 32.637 387
Over 3 years 14,478 4,64
D73 3.41

Note 7. Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank of Baston (Dolars in Thousands)

A summary of the maturity distribution of FHLB of Boston advances (based on final maturity dates) with
weighted average interest rates at March 31 follows:

2003 2002
Amount Rate Amount Rate
Within | year $ 5300 361% § 35600 2.61%
Over | 1o 3 years 34.100 464 21,400 4.83
Over 3 to 10 years 83,000 4,98 82.000 5.52
Over 10 yvears 3.49 2.000 5.49
4.81 5..161.000 4.39

At March 31, 2003, advances totaling $102,000 were callable prior o the scheduled maturity of the
advances of which $84.000 were caliable during fiscal 2004, The Bank is subject to a substantial penalty in the
event it elects to prepay any of its FHLB of Boston advances.

The FHLB of Bosion is authorized to make advances to its members subject to such regulations and
limitations as the Federal Home Loan Bank Board may preseribe. The advances are secured by FHLB of Boston
stock and a blanket lien on cerain qualified collateral, defined principally as 90% of the fair value of US.
Government and federal agency obligations and 73% of the carrving value of first monigage loans on owner-
occupied residential property. The Bank's unused borrowing capacity with the FHLB of Boston was approximately
$26.000 at March 31, 2003,



Note 8, Income Taxes (Dolars 1n Thousands)
The components of the provision for income taxes for the vears indicted are as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2003 20062 2001

Current
Federal $1.930 S 1,355
State 229 52
Total current provision 2,159 1.607
Deterred (prepaid) {382 136
S 1.777 S 1,763

The provision for income taxes for the periods presented s different from the amounts computed by
applying the statutory Federal income tax rate to income before income taxes. The differences between expected tax
rates and effective tax rates are as folows:

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001
Statutory Federal tax rate 34.0% 34.0 % 34.0%
hems affecting Federal income tax rate:
Bividends received deduction {0.3) {0.4) {0.6)
Goodwill amortization - 2.1 2.0
State income taxes. net of Federal benefit 2.7 2.6 1.2

Retroactive REIT legisiation,
net of Federal benefit
Non-Deductible portion of ESOP expense
Other
Effective tax rate

During 2002, the Massachusetts Department of Revenue ("DOR™Y issued notices of intent 10 assess
additional state excise faxes to numerous {inancial institutions in Massachusetis that have formed a real estate
investment trust (REIT) subsidiary. The DOR contends that dividends received by the banks from such subsidiaries
are fully taxable in Massachusests. The Company believes that the state statutes that provide for a 93% dividends
received deduction on certain dividend disuributions apply to dividends received from iis REIT subsidiary.

The Governor of Massachusetts signed legislation on March 3, 2003, which expressly dissllows deductions
for dividends received from a REIT, resulting in such dividends being subject to state taxation. In addidon, thig law
applies retroactively o tax years ending on or after December 31, 1999, In the fourth quanter of fiscal 2003, the
Company provided additonal state taxes, including interest. net ot the related federal tax benefit, of $835.

In June 2003, a setilement of this matter was reached between the DOR and the majority of affected
financial institutions. The settlement provides that 50% of all dividends received from REIT subsidiaries from 1959
through 2002 are subject to state taxation. Interest on such addinonal 1axes is also to be assessed. Payment of such
taxes and interest totaling $431 was made in June 2003, As a result of this settlement, the Bank recognized a
reduction of 3374 in its accrued tax llabilities, which will increase net income by the same amount in the first quarter
of fiscal 2004.




The components of gross deferred tax assets and gross deferred tax Habilities that have been recognized as
of March 31 are as {ollows:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses S 349 S 549
Deferred loan origination fees 42 33
Depreciation 324 298
Post-employes retirement
benefit accrual 236 241
Unrealized loss on securities, net - 423
Write-down of investments 460 218
Deferred expenses 524 -
Other 65 39
Gross deferred tax asset 2,203 1843
Deferred tax Habilives:
Unrealized gain on securities, net 607 -
Accrued dividend receivable 27 ;
Deferred 10an origination costs 219
Deferred income 631
Gross deferred tax Hability 1.484

Net deferred tax asset

Based on the Bank's historical and current pretax earnings, management believes it 1s more likely than not
that the Bank will realize the net deferred tax asset existing at March 31, 2003, Further, management believes the
existing net deductible temporary differences will reverse during periods in which the Bank generates net taxable
income. At March 31, 2003, recoverable income taxes, plus estimated taxes for fiscal 2004, exceed the amount of
the net deferred 1ax asset. There can be no assurance, however, that the Bank will generate any earnings or any
specific level of continuing earmnings.

The unrecaprured base year tax bad debt reserves will not be subject to recapture as long as the Bank
continues to carry on the business of banking. in addition, the balance of the pre-1988 bad debt reserves continues o
be subject to provision of present law that reguires recapture in the case of certain excess distributions to
shareholders. The tax effect of pre-1988 bad debt reserves subject 1o recapture in the case of cenain excess
distributions is approximately $1,300,

Note 9. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk {in Thousands)

The Bank is party to financial mstruments with off-balance sheet risk i the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of s customers. These financial instruments include unused lines of credit, unadvanced
portions of commercial and construction loans, and commitments to originate loans. The instruments involve,
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the balance sheets,
The amounts of those instrumenis reflect the extent of the Bank's involvement in particular classes of financial
mstruments.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to its financial
instruments is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in
making comminments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.



Financial msouments with off-balance sheet risks as of March 31, included the following:

2603 2002
Unused lines of credit $13.133 S 11,033
Unadvanced portions of construction loans 8.260 4.574
Unadvanced portions of commercial loans 925 1,574
Commitments to originate commercial mortgage loans 18,526 13.674
Commitments to originate residential mortgage loans 12.850 11,468
Commutments to sell residential mortgage loans 4,810 -

Comnutments to originate loans, unused lines of credit and unadvanced portions of commercial and
construction loans are agreements 1o lend to a customer, provided there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Commiumnents generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's credit
worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained. i deemed necessary by the Bank upon
extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower.

Note 10. Stockholders’ Equity {Dollars in Thousands, except per share amount)

The Company and the Bank may not declare or pay cash dividends on their stock if the effect thereof would
cause capital to be reduced below regulatory requirements, or if such declaration and payment would otherwise
violate regulatory requirements.

in October 1991, the Bank adopted a Sharcholder Rights Plan. The plan entitles each shareholder to
purchase the Company’'s stock at a discount price in the event any person or group of persons exceeds predetermined
ownership hinutations of the Company's outstanding common stock and, in certain circumstances, engages in
specific activines deemed adverse to the interests of the Company’s shareholders. This plan was due to expire in
October 2001 but was renewed by the Board of Directors during fiscal 2002 and 15 now scheduled to expire in
Qctober 201 1. ‘

Beginning in Apnil 1999, the Board of Directors authorized a series of four separate 5% stock repurchase
programs under which the Company has acquired 363,294 shares of its stoek at an average cost of $19.36 per share.
The latest repurchase program was completed in March 2002,

The Bank is subject to various regulatory caputal requirements adnunistered by the federal banking
agencies. Fatlure to meet minmmun capital requirements can nitiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulations that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components. risk weightings, and
other factors. The minimum core (leverage) capital ratio required for banks with the highest overall rating from bank
regulatory agencies is 3.00% and is 4.00%-5.00% for all others. The Bank must also have a minimum total risk-
based capital ratio of 8.00% (of which 4.00% must be Tier I capital, consisting of common stockholders’ equity). As
of March 31, 2003, the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
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The most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as "well capitalized” under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as “well capialized,” the Bank must maintain minimum
risk-weighted capital, Tier 1 capital and tangibie capital ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or
events, since that notification, that management believes would cause a change in the Bank’s categorization. No
deduction was taken from capital for interest-rate risk. The Company’s and the Bank's Tier /leverage. Tier | nisk-
based and total risk-based capital ratios together with related regulatory minimum requirements are summarnized
below:

To be well
For capital capitalized under
Adequacy prompt corrective
Actual Purposes action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of March 31, 2003
Company (consslidated)
Total capital 339,076 12.05% 325,950 28.00% N/A N/A
Tier | capital 35,792 1103 12,575 24.00 N/A N/A
Tier 1 leverage capital 35,792 7.41 19,299 24.00 N/A N/A
Bank
Total capital 35,949 11.08 25.950 =8.00 $32.437 210.00%
Tier | capital 32,663 10.07 12.975 24.00 19,462 = 6.00
Tier | leverage capital 32,665 6.77 19,299 24.00 24,124 2 5.00
As of March 31, 2002:

Company {consolidated)
Total capital ‘ 40,303 13.06 24,694 28.00 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital 37,011 HL.99 12.347 24.00 N/A N/A
Tier 1 leverage capttal . 37.011 809 18,304 >4.00 N/A N/A
Bank '
Total capital 38,134 12.35 24,700 28.00 30,875 210.00
Tier | capital 34,842 11.28 12,330 24.00 18.525 2 6.00
Tier 1 leverage capital 34,842 7.61 18,304 24.00 22,880 > 5.00

Note 11. Empm}"ee Benefits (Dollars in Thousgands. Except Per Share Data}
Pension and Savings Plans

As a participating employer in the Co-operative Banks Emplovees’ Retirement Association ("CBERA"™), a
multi-employer plan, the Bank has in effect a noncontributory defined benefit plan ("Pension Plan™) and a defined
contributien plan ("Savings Plan”) covering substantially all eligible emplovees.

Benefits under the Pension Plan are determined at the rate of 1% and 1.5%. respectively. of certain
elements of final average pay times years of credited service and are generally provided at age 635 based on years of
service and the average of the participunts’ three highest consecutive years of compensation from the Bank.
Employee contributions are made to & Savings Plan which gualifies under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. The Bank matches 30% of an eligible deferral contnibution on the first 5% of the deferral
amount subject to the maximum allowable under federal regulations. Pension benefits and employer contributions to
the Savings Plan become vested over six years,

Expenses for the Pension Plan and the Savings Plan were 3319, 3289 and $269 for the vears ended March
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Forfeitures are used to reduce expenses of the plans.
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Employee Stack Ownership Plan

During ﬁscal\ 1991, the Bank established an Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP™) that is auﬁmﬁzé&
to purchase shares of outstanding common stock of the Company from time to time in the open market or ju-
negotiated transactions. The ESOP is a tax-qualified defined contribution plan established for the exclusive benefie
of the Bank's employees. o

During fiscal 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a loan to the ESOP 1o acquire up 1o an
additional 3% of cutstanding shares of Company stock. During fiscal 2003, a loan to purchase up 1o an additional
$3,200 in shares for the ESOP was authorized.  During fiscal 2003 and 2002. 114.864 and 7.222 shares,
respectively, were purchased at a purchase price of $3,595 and S199, respectively. The ESOP is repaying its loans :
to the Company with funds from the Bank’s contributions to the ESOP and earnings from the ESOP's assets. These N
loans have terms of up 10 20 years, T

Prior to fiscal 2002, compensation expense was recognized as the shares were allocated to ESOP
participants based upen the cost of the shares to the ESOP. Beginning in fiscal 2002, compensation expense was
recognized as the shares were allocated to participants based upon the fair value of the shares at the time they were
allocated. Conseguently. changes in market value of the Company’s stock have an effect on the Company’s results-

of operations but have no effect on stockholders” equity. ESOP expense for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounted
$429. $305 and $130. respectively, |

Stock Option Plan

The Company has adopred two qualified Stock Option Plans for the benefit of officers and other employvees
under which an aggregate of 281 300 shares had been reserved for issuance. One of these plans terminated in 1997 -

Stock option activity is as follows for the yvears indicated:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Balance March 31, 2000 37,499 18.511
Granted 32501 16623
Balance March 31, 2001 90,000 7.830
Forfeited {799y 16.625
Fxercised (29,388} 16.617
Ralance March 31, 2002 18,448
Exercised 18.308

Ralance March 31, 2003 i8.572

The exercise price of an option will not be less than the fair market value of the commaon stock on the dat

N~

of grant of the option. At March 31, 2003, 33.299 shares were reserved for issuance under the remaining plan.
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All stock options are fully vesied and exercisable at the time of grant. The range of exercise prices and
werghted average remaining contractual life of outstanding stock options at March 31, 2003 are as follows:

Exercise Number Remaining
Price Qutstanding Life
S$16.625 7.7 years

20.250

6.7 vears

Other Post-retirement Benefits

The Bank maintains a post-retirement medical insurance plan and life insurance plan for certain
individuals. The following tables summarize the funded status and the actuarial benefit obligations of these plans for
fiscal 2003 and 2002,

2003 2002
Life Medical Life Medical
Actuarial present value of benefits obligation:
Retirees S22 $ (5337 S (220 $ {614)
Fully eligible participants (14) (37 {a (1323
Total 50243y EREIRS) 5.4232 S.(745)
Change in projected benetit obligation:
Accumulaied benefit obligations at prior vear-end  § (232) S (746) $ {266} $(720)
Service cost less expense component - - - -
Interest cost {16) {27) {16} (51
Actuarial gain (loss) 4 330 43 (12}
Assumptions {9 {29} {(3) (13)
Benefits paid 10 38 10 50
Accumulated benefit obligations at vear-end 3 (243) S (414} (2323 3 (7463
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at prior vear-end § - S - S - S -
Actual return on plan assets - - - -
Emplover contribution {0 58 10 30
Benefits paid end expenses (o (38 {10} (50
Fair value of plan assets at current vear-end S == S N S
Funded S {243) S (414 ${232) S {746)
Unrecognized net obhigation 86 248 93 273
Unrecognized prior year service - - - -~
Unrecognized net (loss) gam (723 {(180) (82) 102

S.0229 2.(340) 219

Reconciliation of {accrual) prepaid:
{Accrued) prepaid pension cost at beginning

of year S (219 $ (371 321D S (343)
Minus net periodic cost (20) 33) {18} (7%
Plus employer contributions, net 10 38 10 30
{Accrued) prepaid cost at end of vear S22 S (346) S.219) S (371

Benefit obligation weighted average asswmption as
of fiscal year-end:
Discount rate 6.50% 6.30% 7.00% 7.00%
Expected return on plan assets 6.50 6.50 7.00%  7.00%

Rate of compensation increase - - - -
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| Percentage Point Iacrease

2003 2002
Life Medical Life Medical
impact of 1% change in health care trend rates:
Effect on total service and interest cost companents S (2 N/A SRS
Effect on the post retirement benefit obligations 27 N/A 53
Components of net periadic benefit obligations:
Service cost 5 - s - S - $ -
Interest cost 16 27 16 31
Expected return on plan asserg - . . -
Amortization of prior service cost G 28 G 25
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss 5 (i% (&) 2
Net periodic benefit cost for fiscal vear ending $_ 0 $ 3 $ 19 S 7%
Periodic benefit cost weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate 7.25% 7.00% 7.25% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets 7.25% 7.00% 7.25% 1.25%

Rate of compensation increase - .- - -

For measurement purposes, a 15.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits was assumed for the fiscal vear ended March 31, 2002, The rate was assumed to decrease to 5.5% for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2003 and remain at that level thereafter.

Note 12. Legal Proceedings

The Bank from time to time is involved as plaintiff or defendant in various legal actions incident to its
business, Lxcept as described herein, none of these actions are believed to be material, either individually or
collectively. to the results of aperations and financial condition of the Company or any subsidiary.

The Bank has been named as defendant in a civil suii filed March 28, 2002 in Middlesex Superior Court
under the caption Yi v. Central Bank in which it is alleged. infer alia. that the Bank committed an unfair or deceptive
trade practice by failing to pay surplus foreclosure proceeds to a junior lien holder in 1994, The plaintff secks
damages of $165,000 plus statutory interest of approximately $175,000 and has applied for a multiple damage award
under Chapter 93A of the Massachusetts General Laws which provides for up to treble damages if a violation is
found to be willful or knowing. While the Bank believes that it has meritorious defenses to all such claims and
intends to vigorously defend against them, a settlement offer has been made to the plaintiffs’ counsel, however, no
response has been received.

The Company and certain present and former directors have been named in related federal and state court
lawsuits brought by PL Capnal. LLC and affiliates (*PL Capital™) and also by Lawrence B. Seidman and affiliates
{“Seidman™), respectively, current and former stockholders, in which PL Capital has challenged actions by the
directors including, among other things, a decision on setting the date for closing of the polis for voting at the 2002
Annual Meeting and the directors” decision following that Asnual Meeting not to seek the sale of the Company. PL
Capital and Seidman have challenged the directors™ determination that PL ¢ apxta and Seidman secretly acted in
concert in violation of the Company’s Sharcholder Rights Agreement {“Rights Plan™).

After a review and recommendation by a Special Commitee of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Directors determined on January 28, 2003 that PL Capital, which owned 9.8% of Central Bancorp shares, had‘
secretly coordinated a November 4, 2002 block trade to place 8.3% of Company’s common siock in the hands of
Seidman, Joseph Sulwell (“Stilwell"} and Robert Reichenbach (“Reichenbach™), thereby exceeding the 0%
ownership limit set by the Shareholder Rights Plan.  As a result, the Special Committee and Board of Directors
determined that PL Capital, Seidman, Stilwell and Reichenbach (collectively. the “PL Capital-Seidman Gmupi'ﬁ
constitute an Acquiring Person under the Rights Plan, Seidman and PL Capital immediately commenced actions in
the Massachusetis Superior Court for Suffolk County to enjoin m}plv.mcm(sz:on of the Rights Plan, which once
implemented would provide an issuance of one additional share of common stock for each share presently owned 10 -
all of the Company’s sharcholders other than the PL Capital-Seidman Group. The Massachusetts Superior Court
entered an €x parte wmporary restraining order, later extended to a preliminary injunction, enjoining the Company
and its Board of Directors from implementing the Rights Plan pending trial on the merits. Following expedited



proceedings n Massachuseus federal and state courts. the parties have asked for rulings on the legal siandard
applicable to the directors” decisions challenged by PL Capital and Scidman and on whether PL Capital and
Seidman can avoid application of the Rights Plan to them by vintue of Seidman’s sale of all of his shares in the
Company. Seidman sold those shares immediately affer his motion for summary judgment in the federal court was
denied and contemporaneously with the federal court’s order that the applicable legal siandard on the applicable
Rights Plan claims be determined by the state court and that trial then proceed as scheduled in the state court. (On
February 11 and February 26, 2003, respectively, the Company and its directors entered into settlement agreements
with Stilwell and Reichenbach (and their respective affiliates) and the litigation was subsequently dismissed with
respect to those parties only.)

PL Capiwal’s initial complaint was filed on October 1, 2002 in the United States District Cournt for the
Dastrict of Massachusetts and amended on November 12, 2002, challenging. respectvely, the decisions of the
Company’s Board of Directors concerning setting a dare for closing the polls on voting for directors at the 2002
Annual Meeting and the Board of Directors” decision not to seek sale of the Company., (PL Capital’s amended
complaint also challenged the directors” decision to re-elect Marat E. Santini and John F. Gilgun, Jr. rather than PL
Capital’s nominees to the Board of the Bank and the Company’s reimbursement of legal fees for Joseph and John
Doherty. and alleged unfair and deceptive trade practices within the meaning of Chapter 93A of the Massachusetis
General Laws.) PL Capital’s requesis for relief were opposed by the Company and its directors and were denied by
the court and dismissed on November 13, 2002, PL Capital and Seidman subsequently filed complaints in the
Massachusens Superior Coun for Sutfolk County on January 30 and 31, 2003 challenging the directors” Righis Plan
decision of January 28, 2003, but the staie court found that PL Capital and Seidman had apparently failed 1o inform
the Court that PL Capital had filed related action s federal count {see above) and was already a party there to
identical claims concerning the Rights Plan. {The Special Committee had {iled in federal court on Junuary 28, 2003,
seeking a declaratory judgment that its decision under the Rights Plan complied with applicable Massachusetts faw.
to prevent such circumvention by PU Capital or Seidman.) Accordingly. PL Capital and Seidman were ordered by
the state court 1o proceed in federal court, where PL Capital had tnrtiated action in Qctober 2002,

PL Capital and Seidman have filed additional claims in the federal court challenging other decisions made
by the Company’s directors. PL Capnal’s claims in the federal court against the Company, us directors, the Central
Cooperative Bank Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan Trust (the "ESOP™) and the Joseph R. Doherty Family Limited
Parinership, L.P. also challenge the directors’ approval of a loan from the Company w the ESOP and allege
interference with PL Capital’s voting rights as a result of the ESOP’s purchase of Reichenbach’s shares of the
Company’s common stock (in connection with Reichenbach’s decision to settle out of the litigation). PL Capital
further alleges that John Doherty, Joseph Doherty, the Joseph R. Doherty Family Limited Partnership, L.P. and the
ESOP (and its trustees) violated Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act™) by
allegedly failing to disclose certain relationships and purported motives in connection with their ownership of the
Company’s stock. PL Capital also seeks a declaratory judgment that former director Garrett Goodbody and director
Richard Fates are entitled to indemnification from the Company with respect to the hitigation. PL Capital seeks
declaratory and injunctive relief, money damages and attorneys’ fees, Seidman has alse alleged in the federal court,
in addition to claims concerning the directors’ Rights Plan determination, claims similar to PL Capital’s alleging
violation of Section 13{d) of the Exchange Act by John Dobherty and Joseph Doherty and interference with
Seidman’s voting rights by virtue of the ESOP’s purchase of Reichenbach’s shares of the Company’s common
stock. Seidman seeks declararory relief and attorneys” fees, The Company has also sought a declaratory judgment
from both the state and federal courss seeking to resolve those litigations (and. in the federal court, the Company has
also alleged that PL Capital and Seidman violated Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act by tailing to disclose to the
Company. 1ts sharcholders and the investing public their coordinated ownership of the Company’s stock).

The Company believes that all of PL Capital’s and Seidman’s claims are without merit and intends to
defend ther vigorously.

Note 13. Fair Values of Financial Instruments (In Thousands)

Fair value estimates are based on existing on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments without
attempting 1o estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not
considered financial instruments. Significant assets and labilities that are not considered financial assets or
Habilities include the intangible value inherent in deposit relationships (i.e. core deposits) and banking premises and
equipment. In addition, the tax ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a
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significant effect on fair values and have not been considered in any of the estimates. Accordingly, the aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not represent the underlving value of the Bank. . : ’

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank i estimating fair values of its financial
mstruments:

Cash and Due from B_zmks

The carrying values reported in the balance sheet for cash and due from banks approximate their fair value
hecause of the short matunity of these instruments.

Short-term Investments

The carrving values reported in the balance sheet for shori-term investments approximate fair value
hecause of the short maturity of these investments.

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities

The fair values presenied for investiment and mortgage-backed securities are based on quoted market prices.
where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on guored market prices of -
comparable instruments.

Loans

The fair values of loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analvsis. using interest rates currently
being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The incremenial credit risk for
nonperforming loans has been considered in the determination of the fair value of loans.

Accrued Interest Receivable

The carrying value reported i the balance sheer for accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value
because of the short maturity of these accounts.

Stock in FHLB of Beston

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for FHLB stock approxamates its fair value. If redeemed,
the Bank will receive an amount equal to the par value of the stock.

The Co-operative Central Bank Reserve Fund

The carrying amount reporied in the balance sheet for the Co-operative Central Bank Reserve Fund
approximates its fair value,

Deposits

The fair values of deposits (excluding term deposit certificates) are, by definition, equal to the amount
pavable on demand at the reporting date. Fair values for term deposit certificates are estimated using a discounted
cash flow technique :hat applies interest rates currently being offered on centificates to a schedule of aggregated
monthly maturities on tme deposits with similar romaining maturities,

Advances from FHLB of Boston

Fair values of non-callable advances from the FHLB of Boston are estimated using a discounted cash flow
technique that applies interest rates currently being offered on advances to a schedule of aggregated monthly
maturities on FHLB advances. Fair values of callable advances from the FHLB of Boston are estimated using the
prepayment fee payable o the FHLB of Boston assuming all such advances were prepaid on the reporting date.

Short-term Borrowings. Advance Payvments by Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance and Accrued

Interest Payable

The carrying values reported in the balance sheet for short-term borrowings, advance payments by
borrowers for taxes and insurance and accrued interest payable approximate their fair value because of the short
maturity of these accounts.

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments

The Bank's commitments for unused lines of credil and unadvanced portions of loans are at floaning rates,
which approximare current market rates, and, therefore, no fair value adjustment has been made.
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The estimated carrving amounts and fair values of the Bank's financial instruments are as follows:

Muarch 31, 2083

March 31, 2002

Carrying  Estimated  Carryving  Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets

Cash and due from banks $ 5,994 $ 5996 S 5108 S 5,109
Short-term investments 5,226 5,226 2.433 2.433
Investment securities 61011 61111 73.884 73,884
Net loans 387,180 393,347 368413 367,893
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston, at cost 8,300 R.300 8,300 8,300
The Co-operative Central Bank Reserve Fund 1.376 1,576 1.576 {376
Accrued interest receivable 2.380 2.380 2,530 2.330

Liabilities
Deposits $287.959 $290,323 $261.907 8262810
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 144,400 160,104 161.000 166.896
Short-term borrowings 176 176 3,000 3,000
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 999 999 RS L
Accrued interest payable ' 606 606 618 618

Note 14. Parent Company Only Condensed Financial Statements (In Thousands)

The following are the condensed financial statements for Central Bancorp, Inc. {the "Parent Company™)

only:

March 31,

Balance Sheets 2003 2002

Assets

Cash deposit in subsidiary bank $ 93 5 1,970

Investment in subsidiary 36,326 36,783

ESOP loan 199

Other assets k —
Total assets S.40,

Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity

Accrued taxes and other Habilities $ 1,030 $ -

Total stockholders™ equity 39,443 38934
Total Habilities and stockholders™ equity $40473 $.38.954

Years Ended March 31,

Statements of [ncome 2003 2002 2041
Dividends from subsidiary $ 2437 5 2.500 S 4.000
Interest income 92 -- --
Non-imterest expenses 2008 466 256
Income before income taxes 523 2.034 3,734
Income tax benetit 163y {134y {87
Income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 1,173 2,188 3.821
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary lol4 672 712
Net income $2.187 S.2.860 33,109




Years Ended March 31,

Statements of Cash Flows 2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $2,187 S 2,860 $3,109
Adjustments o reconcile net income to net cush provided by operaiing
activities:
Equity in undisiributed net income of subsidiary {1,014y {672) 712
Decrease {increase) in other assets (394) -- 190
Increase (decrease) in accrued taxes and other habilities 1.030 (71} 0
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,809 2,117 399
Cash flows from mvesting activities:
ESQOP loans, net of repayment (3.461) (199} -
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 316 492 —
Purchase of treasury stock - (1.924) 2187y
Cash dividends paid {727} (669) {697}
Other. net (14) -
Net cash used by financing activites (225) (2.101) (2 8843
i Net increase (decrease) in cash i subsidiary bank {18377 (183 1,107
. Cash in subsidiary bank at beginping of year 1.970 2,183 1,046
Cash in subsidiary bank atend of vear S 93 S 1.970 $ 2,15
- Note 15. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited) (In Thousands. Except Per Share Data)
The following tables summarize the operating results on a quarterly basis for the vears ended March 31,
2003 and 2002. ’
: 2003
First Second Third Fourth
Interest and dividend INCOME oo $ 7363 5 7430 S 7.600 $ 7516
IRIETEST EXPEISE . ovoveeoererereirers e vereaeeseieteiaseraceninnes 3.283 3.334 3.248 3.007
. Net interest and dividend mecome. . 4,280 4,116 4,332 4.509
NON-IErest INCOME oottt e 223 S8 306 218
Non-interest eXpenses ... . 2.891 3132 3.200 4.634
Income before INCome taXES. vt 1,612 1,042 1,438 673
IRCOIME LK. 1oereirtieeritere e ai e 383 37 548 1,091
Netineome (JOSS) oo L8 1027 S Do S 910 S {418
Eamnings {Ioss) per common share — basic ..., £..064 S 042 S 038 $.1027D
Eamings {loss) per common share - diluted ..., S D63 §..042 S 0.3% S {0.27)
2002
First Second Third Fourth
; Interest and dividend Income ... $ 7599 8 7180 $ 7052 S 7442
IIETESE EXPEISE .ot creerteneeninoeec e v 4.364 3820 3344 3.332
Net interest and dividend income ..o 3,235 3.360 3.708 4,110
: NON-ITHETEST HICOME . oot ieveesveire e e ienen 409 337 244 302y
i NON-INIErest eXPenses ..o [ B 2.811 2.806 2,467 2.380
{ncome before income XS, e 833 8§91 1,485 1,428
THICOIMIZ X cotieiviiiveiere et e crcanene s e aeaea s eaas e esers 303 327 336 a1l
NEEINCOMIE oo e TR S 830 S bl S 949 S S
Earnings per common share — basic...... L8 032 S .LLB3d S..0357 $..0.350
Eamings per common share — diluted S 325034 S...037 S...0.50
: 57




During the quarter ended March 31, 2003, the Bank recognized gamns on the sales of loans of $768. During
the quarters ended March 31, 2003 and 2002. the Bank recognized write-downs of 5115 and $457, respecuively, for
certain marketable equity securities which had experienced a decline i fair value which was judged 10 be other than
temporary.

As more fully descnibed in Note 8 to the accompanying consohdated financial statements, the Bank
provided additional income taxes of $833 In the quarter ended March 31, 2003 as a result of legislation affecting the
taxation of dividends received by the Bank from s REIT subsidiary. In addition, included in non-interest expenses
for the quarter ended March 31, 2003, are an accrual for the Bank’s portion of the estimated cost of resolution of a
commercial claim filed in 2002 and legal fees incurred in the pending dispute with certain of the Company’s
shareholders that, together, amounted to $1 426,

(¥4
b
<




Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Central Bancorp. Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Central Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary {the
Company) as of March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
stockholders' equity and cash flows for cach of the years in the three-vear period ended March 31, 2003, These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibiity 1s
eXpress an opinion on these consohdated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits i accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain ressonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 4 test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures m the {inancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial sietements referved to above present fairly, in all material respects. the
financial position of Central Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as of March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-vear period ended March 31, 2003, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective April 1. 2002, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

KPMe P

Boston, Massachusetts
April 25, 2003, except as to the fifth paragraph
of Note §, which is as of June 23, 2003.



item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable,

PART I}

Ttem 10, Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled “Proposal |
------ Election of Directors”™ and “Section 16(2) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ in the Proxy Statement.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics which applies to 1ty senior executive and financial officers.
The Code of Ethies is included as Exhibit 14 1o this Annual Report.

Item 1. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated heremn by reference to the section ttled “Executive
Compensation and Other Beneflis™ in the Proxy Statement,

tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Benelicial Owners and Manacement and Related Stockholder

Matters

(2)

(b}

©)

(D)

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned

““Voung Securities and Principal Holders Thereof™ in the Proxy Statement.

Security Ownership of Management

The information required by this item 1s incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned
“Proposal | — Election of Directors — Security Ownership of Management™ in the Proxy
Statement.

Changes in Control

Not applicable.

Equity Compensation Plans

The Company has adopied the 1999 Stock Option and Incenuve Plan pursuant to which equity
may be awarded to participants. This plan has been approved by stockholders.
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The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the Company’s equity
compensation plans as of March 31, 2003. ’

(a) (b) ©
Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance

Number of securities to be issued Weighted-average exercise under equity compensation
upon exercise of outstanding price of outstanding plans (excluding securities
Plan Categorv options, warrants and rights  options, warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans 31,474 $18.572 33,299
approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans not 0 0 0
approved by security holders
Total (1) 31,474 : $18.572 33,299
1) The 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan provides for a proportionate adjustment to the number of shares reserved

thereunder in the event of a stock split, stock dividend reclassification or similar event.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section titled “Certain
Transactions” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures.

Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in timely alerting them to material information required to be included in the Company’s periodic SEC reports.

There have been no éigniﬁcant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect those controls subsequent to the date of their last evaluation.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statemeﬂt Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents afe.%led as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(1) Financial Statements

For the Financial Statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, reference is made
to “Item 8 -- Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.
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Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted as not applicable or not required or because
they are included in the financial statements appearing at Item 8.

Exhibits Required by Paragraph (c) of Item 14

See “Item 14(c) -- Exhibits”

Reports on Form 8-K -- The Registrant filed the following Current Reports on Form 8-K during the

fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003:

Date of Report . Item(s) Reported Financial Statements Filed
January 28, 2003 7,9 N/A
February 24, 2003 5 N/A
March 7, 2003 5,7 N/A
Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as exhibits to this report.

Exhibit No. Description

3.1% Articles of Organization of Central Bancorp, Inc.

3.2% Bylaws of Central Bancorp, Inc.

4.1 Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of October 11, 2001, by and between
the Central Bancorp, Inc. and Registrar and Transfer Company, as Rights
Agent, as amended and restated as of January 29, 2003, and as amended on
February 11, 2003 and May 22, 2003

10.1* Employment Agreement between the Bank and John D. Doherty, dated
October 24, 1986 }

10.2%* First Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank and John
D. Doherty, dated March 31, 1992 ¥

10.3* Second Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank and
John D. Doherty, dated June 8, 1995

10.4%* Third Amendment to the Employment Agreement between the Bank and
John D. Doherty, dated January &, 1999 1

10.5* Termination Agreement, dated March 31, 1992, by and between the
Bank and Joseph R. Doherty +

10.6* Consulting Agreement, dated March 31, 1992, by and between the Bank
and Joseph R. Doherty 1

10.7* Amendment to Consulting Agreement between the Bank and Joseph R.
Dobherty, dated August 11, 1994 §

10.8%* Severance Agreement between the Bank and William P. Morrissey,
dated December 14, 1994 §

10.9* Severance Agreement between the Bank and David W. Keam, dated
December 14, 1994 1

10.10* Severance Agreement between the Bank and Paul S. Feeley, dated May 14, 1998

10.11* Amendments to Severance Agreements between the Bank and Messrs. Feeley,
Keam and Morrissey, dated January 8, 1999. t

10.12%* 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan +

10.13*** Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors 1
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10.14 Management Incentive Plan, as amended f

10, 15%%%* Severance Agreement between the Bank and Michael K. Devlin, dated February 25,
2002. ¥

10.16 Termination of Consulting Agreement between the Bank and Joseph R. Doherty,
dated July 30, 2002 T

14 Code of Ethics for Senior Executive and Financial Officers

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23 Consent of KPMGLLP

99 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to

Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

t Management contract or compensatory plan. -

* Incorporated herein by reference to the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ma.rch 31, 1999, filed with the SEC on
June 28, 1999.

¥ Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-87005) filed on September 13,

1999.
ok Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-49264) filed on November 3, 2000.
Rl Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 filed with the
SEC on June 28, 2002,
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CENTRAL BANCORP, INC.

Date: June 27, 2003 By: /s/ John D. Doherty
‘ ' John D. Doherty
Chairman, President, & Chief Executive Officer
(Duly Authonzed Representative)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the followmg persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ John D. Doherty ) Date: June 27,2003
John D. Doherty
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Michael K. Devlin Date: June 27, 2003
Michael K. Devlin ' :
Senior Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer _
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer )

By: /s/ Joseph R. Doherty Date: June 27, 2003
Joseph R. Doherty
Director

By: /s/ Terence D. Kenney Date: June 27, 2003
Terence D. Kenney '
Director

By: /s/ James F. Linnehan Date: June 27, 2003
James F. Linnehan
Director

By: /s/ Paul E. Bulman , Date: June 27, 2003
Paul E. Bulman
Director

By: /s/ Richard J. Fates Date: June 27,2003
Richard J. Fates
Director

By: /s/ Nancy D. Neri Date: June 27, 2003
Nancy D. Neri
Director

By: /s/ Gregory W. Boulos Date: June 27, 2003
Gregory W. Boulos
Director
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Certification

I, John D. Doherty, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Central Bancorp, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Central Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a materia|
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
‘the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date™); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date; ’

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this anrual report whether there
were significant changes in internal confrols or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: June 27, 2003

/s/ John D. Doherty

John D. Doherty

Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer
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Certification

I, Michael K. Devlin, Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of Central Bancorp,
Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Central Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and
have: '

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there
were significant changes in interndl controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: June 27, 2003

/s/ Michael K. Devlin

Michael K. Devlin

Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial
Officer
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“ ' Exhibit 99

CERTIFICATION UNDER
SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

To my knowledge, this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2003 (the “Report™), fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the
information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the consolidated financial condition and
results of operations of Central Bancorp, Inc.

By:/s/ John D. Doherty
John D. Doherty
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Michael K. Devlin
Michael K. Devlin
Senior Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer

Date: June 27, 2003
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Board of Directors
Central Bancorp, Inc.

John D. Doherty

Chairman, President &
Chief Executive Officer

Central Bancorp, Inc.

Gregory W. Boulos
Partner
CB Richard Ellis/The Boutos Company

Paul E. Bulman

Chairman, Policy Holders Protective Board
Savings Bank Life Insurance Company
Joseph R. Doherty

Chairman

Central Co-operative Bank

Richard J. Fates

Financial Planner

Baystate Financial Services

Terence D. Kenney

Retired Chairman of the Board of Assessors

City of Woburn, Massachusetts

James F. Linnehan
Attorney & Certified Public Accountanit

Nancy D. Neri
President .
George L. Doherty Funeral Service, Inc.

Honorary Director
Philibert L. Pellegrini, Esa.

Board of Directors

‘Central Co-operative Bank

Joseph R. Doherty
Chairman
Central Co-operative Bank

John D. Doherty
President & Chief Executive Officer
Central Co-operative Bank

Gregory W. Boulos
Partner
CB Richard Ellis/The Boulos Company

Paul E. Bulman
Chairman, Policy Holders Protective Board
Savings Bank Life Insurance Company

John F. Gilgun, Jr.
President
John F. Gilgun Agency

Terence D. Kenney
Retired Chairman of the Board of Assessors
City of Woburn, Massachusetts

Nancy D. Neri
President
George L. Doherty Funeral Service, Inc.

Marat E. Santini
Consultant
Santini, Inc.

Executive Officers

John D. Doherty
President & Chief Executive Officer

Michael K. Devlin
Senior Vice Pres/dergt, Treasurer &
Chief Financial Officer

Paul S. Feeley
Senior Vice President &
Chief Information Officer

David W. Kearn
Senior Vice President — Lending

William P. Morrissay
Senior Vice President of Public Affairs

Rhoda K. Astone
Secretary & Clerk

The above officers of Central Co-operative
Bank also serve as officers of Central
Bancorp, Inc.
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Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Central
Bancorp, Inc. will be held at 11:00 a.m. on September 30, 2003, at
the Holiday Inn, 30 Washington Street, Somerville, Massachusetts.

Investor Inquiries. Investors and other parties interested in
obtaining information or who have questions about the Company
should contact Wililam P. Morrissey, Senior Vice President, 399
Highland Avenue, Somerville, MA 02144, (617) 628-4000.

Additional copies of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, are available without charge.

Common Stock. On January 8, 1999, Central Bancorp, Inc. became
the holding company for Central Bank, whose legal name is Central
Co-operative Bank. The Bank becarme a public. company on October
24, 1986 by issuing 1,840,000 shares of commonstock at $7.50 a
share. Central Bancorp's common stock is traded over-the-counter on
the NASDAQ National Market System™! (NASDAQ) under the symbol

Common Stock Prices

CEBK. At March 31, 2003, there were 1,662,433 shares of common
stock outstanding and approximately 250 holders of record of the
common stock. This total does not reflect the number of persons cr
entities who held the stock in nominee or "street name" through various
brokerage firms. in October 1996, the Company established a quarterly.
cash dividend policy and made its first dividend distribution on
November 15, 1996; it has paid cash dividends on a quarterly basis
since initiating the dividend program.

The following tables list the high and low prices for Central
Bancorp's common stock during each quarter of fiscal 2003 and fiscal
2002 as reported by NASDAQ, and the amounts and payable dates
of the cash dividends paid during each quarter of fiscal 2003 and fiscal
2002. The stock guotations constitute interdealer prices without retail
markups, markdowns or commissions, and may not necessarily
represent actual transactions.

Cash Dividends (payable dates)

Fiscal 2003 High Low Fiscal 2002 High Low Fiscal 2003 Amount Fiscal 2002 Amount
6/30/02 $ 31.95 S 26.50 6/30/01 $ 26.00 $ 17.50 5/17/02 $.10 5/18/01 $.10
9/30/02 33.50 28.05 9/30/01 27.75 21.50 8/16/02 10 8/17/01 10
12/31/02 31.50 28.31 12/31/01 26.99 21.00 11/15/02 12 11/16/01 10
3/31/03 36.55 30.11  3/31/02 29.75 25.00 2/14/03 A2 2/15/02 .10
Transfer Agent Independent Auditors Legal Counsel Deposit Insurance

KPMG LLP
99 High Street
Boston, MA 02110-2371

Registrar and
Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, NJ 07016
(800) 368-5948

Stradley Ronon Stevens & Young, LLP
1220 19th Street N.W., Suite 600
Washington, DC 200386

Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC)

Share Insurance Fund (SIF)

Web Site

Central Bank Home Page

http://www.centralbk.com



'ce'nt.rél- bancorp, inc.
- 399 Highland Avenue
Somerville, MA 02144

617.628.4000
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